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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 32n<lAnnual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
will be held on Friday, the 29thJuly, 2022 at 11 :30 a.m. 1ST through Video Conferencing ("VC") I
Other Audio Visual Means ("OA VM") to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
I. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the

year ended on 31" March, 2022 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted."

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director and in this
regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386), who retires by rotation at this meeting
and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as

a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

Regd.Office :
.

15B, HemantaBasuSarani, 3rdFloor

Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: 26111May, 2022

NOTES:

By Order of the Board

For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

(Mg.Director)
DIN: 00123386

I. In view of Covid-I 9 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its
Circular No.20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020
and Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No.2/2021 dated January 13,
2021 and CircularNo.19/2021 dated December 8, 2021, 21/202! dated December 14, 2021
and Circular No.2/2022 and 3/2022 dated May 5,2022 (collectively referred to as "MCA
Circulars") and other applicable circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (''AGM") through
VC I OA VM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In

comp! iance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC I
OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of
Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,
23'd July, 2022 to Friday, 29'" July, 2022 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that. the 32"d Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
will be held on Friday, the 29th luly,2022 at I 1:30 a.m. IST through Video Conferencing 1,,Vb,,;7
other Audio visual Means ("OAVM") to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
year ended on 3l't March, 2022together with the Report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31,2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
laid bef,ore this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted."

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director and in thii
regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mt. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386), who retires by rotation at this meeting
and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed ai
a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.',
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Regd.Office:
158, HemantaBasuSarani, i'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date : 26th May,2022 MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)

DIN: 00123386
NOTES:

l. In view of Covid-I9 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its
Circular No.2012020 dated May 5,2020 read with Circular No.1412020 dated April 8,2020
and Circular No.l712020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No.2l2021dated January 13,
2021and CircularNo.l912021 dated December 8, 2021,21/2021dated December 14,2021
and Circular No.212022 and 3/2022 dated May 5,2022 (collectively referred to as "MCA
Circulars") and other applicable circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through
VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2Ol5 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC 7
OAVM. ,

2. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2Ol3 the Register of
Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday,
23'd July,2022 to Friday, 29th July,2022 (bothdays inciusive) for annual closing.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.
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3. Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the
Attendance Slip, Route Map and Proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

4. The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OA VM from its Registered Office i.e,
15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor, Kolkata-700001.Whi<;hshall be deemed to be venue
of the meeting.

5. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are

requested to send a scanned copy of the board resolution (pdf/jpeg format) authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. The said Board
Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered
email address to investorcare@norbentea.com.

6. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-vonng) through
an electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as presently in force and
the business set out in the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information
and instructions including details of user id and password relating toe-voting are provided
in the Notice under Note No.17

7. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their
address alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the. Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents (RT A), MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited. Members holding shares in electronic
mode are requested to send the intimation for change of address / bank mandate to their
respective Depository Participant.

8. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
holding in the same order of names are requested to write to the Company's RTA,
enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a

single folio.

9. Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per
the regulation of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already
complied with, please ignore this).

I 0. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the R&T Agent or to the
Registered Office of the Company.

11. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as

possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository
Participantand holdings should be verified.

3' Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the
Attendance Slip, Route Map and Proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

4. The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM from its Registered Office i.e.
158 Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor, folkata-Z0oool.Which shall be dJemed to be venue
of the meeting.

5. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are
requested to send a scanned copy of the board resolution (pdf/jpeg format) authori-zing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the tvteeling. The said Board
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email thrJugh its registered
email address to investorcare@norbentea.com.

6' The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through
an electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by tf,e
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as presently in force and
the business set out in the Notice will be transacted through suctr voting. Information
and instructions including details of user id and password relating to e-votin! are provided
in the Notice under Note No.l7

7. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their
address alongwith proof of address/bank mandate io the. Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents (RTA), MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited. Membbts holding shares in electronic
mode are requested to send the intimation for change of address / bank mandate to their
respective Depository Participant.

8 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
holding in the same order of names are requested to write to the compary,, RTA,
enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their trbtaings into a
single folio.

9. Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per
the regulation of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already
complied with, please ignore this).

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested. to submit their pAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the R&T Agent or to the
Registered Office of the Company.

11. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as
possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depositoiy
Participant and holdings should be verified.
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12. Details under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Director
seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of the notice.
The Director has furnished the requisite declaration for his/her re-appointment.

13. Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 32"4 Annual General Meeting of
the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent to all
the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)
for communication purposes.

In terms of SEBJ Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/l l dated January 15,
2021 and Circular No.SEBI1HO/CFD/CMD2/CIRJP/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 owing to
the difficulties involved in despatching of physical/hard copies of foll annual report to
shareholders are being sent in electronic mode to members those email address is
registered with the Company or the Depository Participant (s), The members who have not

updated their email address are requested to do so immediately since the requirement of
sending physical copies of annual report are dispensed with.

14. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts
and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the
Act and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in
electronic mode.

15. Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in
respect of shares held by them pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. The prescribed Form
(Forni SH 13) can be obtained from the Share Department of the Company. Members
desiring to avail this facility may send their Nomination Form (in duplicate) duly filled in,
to the Company or its Share Transfer Agents, lv1CS Share Transfer Agent Limited of 383,
Lake Gardens, I'' Floor, Kolkata - 700045, by quoting their respective Folio Numbers.

16. Members may also note that the Notice of the 32ndAnnual General Meeting, the Annual
Report for 2021-22 will also be available on the Company's website www.norbentea.com.
Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost.

For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's
investor email id: investorcare@norbentea.com.

17. CDSL e-Voting System - For c-voting and Joining Virtual meetings.

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the
general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the
Ministryof Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular
No.17/2020 dated April 13. 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05. 2020. The
forthcoming Annual General Meeting will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or
other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules. 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020. April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020
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No.1712020 dated April 13,2020 and Circular No.2012020 dated ir/ay 05, 2O2O.fhe
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the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the

business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The

facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as thee-voting system
on the date of the Annual General Meeting will be provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the Annual General Meeting in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes

before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the

procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the Annual General

Meeting through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come

first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or

more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors. Key Managerial
Personnel. the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to

attend the Annual General Meeting without restriction on account of first come first served

basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM

will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the

Companies Act. 2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to

attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this Annual General Meeting.
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,

representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State

or body corporate can attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM and cast

their votes through e-voting.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,

2020, the Notice calling the Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the website of

the Company at www.norbentea.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites

of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India limited at

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The Annual General Meeting
Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e­

Voting facility and e-voting system during the Annual General Meeting)
i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

7. The Annual General Meeting has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No.14/2020

dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular

No.20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

8. In continuation of this Ministry's General Circular No.20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and

after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to

be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or

before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4

of the General Circular No.20/2020 as per MCA Circular No.02/2021 dated

January,13,2021.
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of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited at
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THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSUNSDLe-Voling system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

·

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in

physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

{i) The voting period begins on 26'" July, 2022 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 28" July, 2022 (5.00
p.m.}. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 22"0 July, 2022 may cast their vote

electronically. Thee-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to

vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/20201242 dated 09.12.2020, under

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entitiesare required to provide remote

e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it

has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail

shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of

multiple user !Os and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation,
it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a

single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without

having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting
process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSUNSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms ofSEBI Circular No. SEBUHO/CFO/CMD/CIR/P/20201242 dated December 9, 2020

one-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities

in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories
and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email

Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL I NSDL is given
below:

5

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E.VOTING AND JOINTNG VIRTUAL
MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 . Access through Depositories CDSUNSDLe-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i) Thevotingperiodbeginson26th July,2022(9.00a.m.)andendson2Sth July,2022(S.OO
p m.). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the culoff date 22nd July, 2022 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No.SEBUHO/CFD/CMD lCIRtPl2020l242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, listed entities are required to provide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it
has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in lndia. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user lDs and passwords by the shareholders.

ln order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation,
it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a
single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting
process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/GFD/CMD/CIRyP/20201242 dated December 9,2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories
and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email
Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for lndividual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL / NSDL is given
below:
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Type of Login Method

shareholders

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi I Easiest facility, can login through their

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting

page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi I

Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi,

After successful login the Easi I Easiest user will be able to see thee-Voting
.
option for eligible companies where the cvoting is in progress as per the

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user

will be able to see e-Voting page of thee-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.

CDSUNSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit thee-Voting
service providers' website directly.

I)
Individual

Shareholders

holding
securities in

Dematmode

with CDSL
2)

Depository

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at

https ://web. cdsl ind ia.com/m yeasi/R egistrat ion/Eas iRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on

www.cdslindia.com home page or click on

https://cvoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The system will

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as

recorded in the Demat Account. After, successful authentication, user will be

able to see thee-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able

to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual

Shareholders

holding
securities in

demat mode

with NSDL

Depository

I) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e­

Services website ofNSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon

under "Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will

open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to

e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page .

.

Click on company name ore-Voting service provider name and you will be re­

directed toe-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

l) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi /
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.comim),easi/homellogin or visit
wr.vr,v.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
. option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME,, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at

https ://web.cdsl india.com/myeasi/Regi stration/EasiRegistrat ion

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
rvrvrv.cdslind ia.com home page or click on

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evotingi Evotingl-ogin. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as

recorded in the Demat Account. After, successful authentication, user will be

able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able

to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon

under "Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to
e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-

directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.
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2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is

available at https:i/eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS

"Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.isp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https://www.evotinu.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page ofe-Voting system is launched, click on

the icon "Login" which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A

new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a

Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting

page. Click on company name ore-Voting service provider name and you will

be redirected toe-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting

Individual

Shareholders

(holding
securities in

demat mode)
login through
their

Depository
Participants
(DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDLICDSL fore-Voting facility.
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click

on e-Yoting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on

company name ore-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected

to e- Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e­

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID I Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical

issues related to login through Depository i.e.CDSL and NSDL

Loain tvne Helndesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can

securities in Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

heltidesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free

no. I 800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can

securities in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

i
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 !020

990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in

physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

7

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is

available at https:/leservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS

"Portal or click at https:l/eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectRegjsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https:lli.vrvw.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on

the icon "Login" which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a

Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants
(DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, whereiri.you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holdins securities in demat mode for anv technical
issues related to losin throush Depositorv i.e.CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.corn or contact at toll free
no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
990 and 1800224430

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.
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(v) login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings fat Physical shareholders and

shareholders other than individual holding in Oemat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to thee-voting website www,evotingindia.com.

2) Click on "Shareholders" module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number

registered with the Company,

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia,com and

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company. then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholder

holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

Details

OR Date • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company .

of Birth please enter the member id I folio number in the Dividend Bank

(DOB) details field.

(vi) After entenng these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT' tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach

'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login

password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by

the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are

eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential.

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for: Physical shareholders and

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotinoindia.com.

2) Click on "Shareholders" module

3) Now enter your User lD

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary lD,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP lD followed by 8 Digits Client lD,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number

registered with the ComPanY.

4) Next enter the lmage Verification as displayed and click on Login

5) lf you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotinqindia.com and

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) lf yo u are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach

'password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login

password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by

the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are

eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. lt is

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential. '

I

For Physical shareholders and other than individual sharehol

holding shares in Demat.

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN iss

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

a

ued by lncome Tax DePartmentPAN

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Bi

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login

lf both the details are not recorded with the depository or company,

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank

details field.

o

rth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) asDividend

Bank

Details

OR Date

of Birth

(DoB)



(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only fore-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice,

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on w?ichyou choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same
the option "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

(xi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote. click on "OK", else to

change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Clickhere to print" option on the
Voting page

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians - For Remote
Voting only.

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
"Corporates" module.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on,

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in
case of any wrong mapping.

• It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatoryto send the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote. to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz;investorcare@norbentea.com, if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see 'RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION' and against the same
the option "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option yES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

(xi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resotution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on ,,SUBMIT,. A
confirmation box will be displayed. lf you wish to confirm your vote, click on ,,OK,,, else to
change your vote, click on "cANcEL' and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you 'CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print,, option on the
Voting page. .

(xv) lf a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User lD and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

(xvii)

o

a

a

a

a

a

Additional Facility for Non - lndividual Shareholders and Custodians - For Remote
Voting only.
Non-lndividual shareholders (i.e. other than lndividuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to lqg on to www.evotinqindia.com and register themselves in the
"Corporates" module.
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. ,

After receiving the login details a Compliance User shouliJ be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account[s) for which
they wish to vote on.
The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in
case of any wrong mapping.

l!_is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and power of Attorney
f_O}) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploadeO in
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
Alternatively Non lndividual shareholders are required mandatoryto send the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together wiih attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory who are authbrized to vote, to the Scrutiniz6r and to the
Company at the email address viz;investorcare@norbentea.com, if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system toi gre scrutinizer to
verify the same.

q



INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING THROUGH VC/OA VM & E- VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

I. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the Annual General

Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above fore-voting.

2. The link for VC/OA VM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company
will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e­

voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the

meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops I !Pads for better

experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or

LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior
to meeting mentioning their name, dernat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 days prior to

meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to

express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OA VM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e­

Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e­

Voting system available during the Annual General Meeting.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through thee-voting available during the Annual
General Meeting and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OA VM facility; then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as

the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending
the meeting.

1.0

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

l. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the Annual General
Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company
will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-
voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better
experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Intemet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior
to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. These queries will'be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the Annual General Meeting.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the Annual
General Meeting and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending
the meeting
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

I. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RT A email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no.

with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e- Voting
& joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending Annual General Meeting & e-Voting from
the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact
attoll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facilityfor voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg. Lower Parel (East), Mumbai
- 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

I. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM and are

attending the meeting will not be entitled to cast their vote again.

fl. Investors who· became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the
Notice I Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e.22"d July, 2022, are

requested to send the written I email communication to the Company at

investorcare@norbentea.com by mentioning their Folio No. I DP ID and Client ID to

obtain the Login-ID and Password fore-voting.

Ill. Shareholders can also update your mobile number and email id in the user profile
details of the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

IV. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 22"d July, 2022. A

person who is not a member as on cut off date should treat this notice for information

purpose only.

V. Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries of Plot No.IID/31/1, Street No. 1111,
PS Qube, Unit No. l O l 5A, IO'hFloor, Kolkata- 700161 has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and voting process to be carried out at
the Annual General Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

VI. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later than 2 days of conclusion of the AGM, a

consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to
the Chairman of the Company.
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VII. The Chairman shall declare the result forthwith. The Results declared alongwith the
Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.norbentea.com
and on the website of CDSL and communicated to the stock exchange(s),immediately.

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the. forthcomingAnnual GeneralMeeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and DisclosureRequirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General MeetingsJ

Name of the Director
Mr. l\lanoi Kumar DazaDirector Identification Number (DIN) 00123386

Date of Birth
06-01-1963

Nationalitv
Indi1:U1

Date of Aonointment on the Board 25m April, 1994
Desiznanon

Chairman & Mg. DirectorQualifications
Bachelor of'Commerce

Exr>crtise in specific functional area Accounts. Finance
Number of shares held iu the Comnanv 120501
List of the directorships held i11 other listed companies Tongani Tea Con1p311)'Limited

Joonktollee Tea & lndustries LimitedNumber of Board Meetings attended durin2 the year 2021-22 6
Chairmanships I Memberships of Committees of other listed 6us;Ft Co1nmi1tt:r
companjes•

Joonktollee Tea Industries Ltd.
(Chairman).

Stak?l1C1l!:ht?Relationshi12(ommlttee

Tonsaru Tea Company Lid. (Chairman)Relationshios between Directors inter-se None
Remuneration details /Including Sittina Fees & Commission) Rs.6.60.000/·

• Committee positions only Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee in Public Companieshave been considered.

Regd.Offlce:
158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor, ·

Kolkata-700001.

Date: 26th May, 2022

12.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

(Mg. Director)
DJN: 00123386

vII' The chairman shall declare the result forthwith. The Results declared alongwith thescrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the company's website wwlv.norbentea.comand on the website of GDSL and communicaied to the stock exchange(s),immediately.

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the. forthcoming Annual GeneralMeeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the'srni lristirg 
-oilig"i'i'# 

"ra DisclosureRequirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on GenJral tueltingsl

Name of the Director Mr. Man KumarDirector Identification umNr ber 00123386
Date of Birth

06-01-1963

Indian
Date of ent on the Board 1994

Chairman & Director
Bachelor of Commerce

functional areatn Accounts, Finance
Num ofber shares held theIN Com 120501
List of the directorshi in other listed companiesps held T'ongani Tea Company Lirnited

LimitedJoonktollee Tea & IndustriesNumber of Board 2021-22attended the 6
Chairmanships / Mem
companies*

berships of Committees of other listed

Joonktollee Tea Industries
(Chairmart).

Stakeholders Relationshio Comrnittee

Ltd.

Tea Lrd.

Audit Committee

Relatio between Directors inter-se None
ncludi Sittin Fees & CommissionRemuneration details Rs.6,60,000/-

ffi:T[fTffi:l:;:*,, Audit comminee and stakeholders'Rerationship committee in public companies

Regd.Office:
l5B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor,
Kolkata-700001.

Date:26h May,2022

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg. Director)

DIN:00123386
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN: L01132WB1990PLC048991

REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TO THE MEMBERS
The Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Second Annual Report together with the Company'sAudited Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS
The financial performance of the Company for the year ended on 3!81 March, 2022 is summarizedbelow:-

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

YearEnded Year Ended March
March· 31, 2022 31,2021

(Rs. in thousand) (Rs. in thousand)Total Revenue
60342 75213

Profit before Finance Cost, Depreciation and Taxation 9801 24728Less: Finance Cost
6606 6845Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation and Tax
3195 17883Less : Depreciation
5221 4959Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax

(2026) 12924Prior Period Expenditure
--

--Profit/ (Loss) before Tax
(2026) 12924Less/(Add) : Current Tax

100 1375Less/(Add) : Mat Credit
(100) (864)Income Tax for earlier year

1 (133)Provision of Deferred Tax (Credit)
637 772Profit/(Loss) after Tax

' (2664) 11774Other Comnrehensive Income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

258 (28)Income tax relating to these items
(66) 7Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2472) 11753

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
Compared to new record high price levels for tea in the previous year, tea prices for CTC teas have reviseddownwards resulting in lower revenue. The investments done by the company in plantation, and Plant andMachinery have started yielding results, in better quality of produce. During the year under review there iscash accrual from operations and revenue is expected to increase substantially in coming times.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has been no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the reported financial year.

4.DIVIDEND
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2021-22 in view ofretaining cash foryour Company's growth prospects.

5. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE
The closing balance of the retained earnings of the Company for FY 2022, after all appropriations andadjustments was Rs.(925115).
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6. MATERIAL CHANGES COMMITTMENTS
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company which has
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of the report.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review the Company has not altered its share capital,

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place, an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size,
requirements and the nature of operations. These systems are designed keeping in view the nature of
activities location and various business operation.

9.DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Being a listed entity, the financial statements are passing through the Audit Committee and the processes of
Internal and External (Tax, Cost and Statutory) Audits, before being approved at the meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Company. The financial statements are regularly updated on the Company's website and
available to all stakeholders.

10. NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

As on 31st March, 2022, your company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures pr associate Companies.

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. AUDITOR AND AUDITORS REPORT
M/s L. K. Bohania & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.3 l 7 l 36E) the statutory auditors of
the Company, will hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the financial year
2025-26 for a second term of five consecutive years.

The report by the Auditors is self explanatory and has no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board were required.

13.SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Apointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board has appointed CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal,
Proprietor of Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, Practicing Company Secretary as its
secretarial auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the FY 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report in the
specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure A in the Annexure forming part of this Report.
The Secretarial Audit Report has a qualification, reservation, adverse remark relating to suspension in
trading of equity shares of the Company due to non-compliance of the eligibility requirement for
continuous listing and the Company has made an application on 15thJanuary, 2022 to BSE for revocation
of suspension of Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and awaiting for their approval. The Equity
Shares of the Company are traded at the National Stock Exchange ofindia Limited.

In the meantime The Bombay Stock Exchange has allowed the Company to do all the filings in compliance
with the listing regulations and the Company is complying with the filing requirements on regular basis.

14. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS
There were no instances of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to
report to the Audit Committee and/or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder.
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15.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION OF TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given as Annexure Bin the Annexure forming part of this Report.

16.EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3), read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 has been uploaded on the

Company's website at www .norbentea.com/pdf/extractoftheannualreturn _March_ 2022. pdf

17.POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The level of operations of the Company does not conform to the minimum threshold of Corporate Social

Responsibility reporting.

18. DIRECTORS

At present your Board is duly constituted comprising of 6 (Six) Directors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:
00123386), Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria (DIN: 05353976), Mrs. Swati · Agarwal (DIN: 06804522), Mr.

Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN: 08599472), Mr. Deepak Tiwari (DIN:08839075) and Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee
(DIN:08837933). In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of

Association of the Company, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

19. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE

APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

There has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the financial year.

Ms. Neha Gupta, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company
resigned from the office with effect from 13thApril, 2022.

Ms. Sanjana Tiwari appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with effect from 26th

May, 2022.

20. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors have met 6 (six) times during the financial year on 26-06-2021, 09-08-2021, 16-09-

2021, 09-11-2021, 29-01-2022 and 09-02-2022. The maximum time gap between any two meetings was

less than 120 days as stipulated under SEBI's Listing Requirements, 2015. Details of meeting are given in

the "Corporate Governance Report" of the Annual Report.

21.SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 09-11-2021, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria the

lead Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting review the

performance of the non Independent Directors.

Details of the separate meeting of the independent Directors held and attendance of Independent Directors

therein are provided in the report on corporate governance forming part of this report.

22. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Every Independent Director has, at the first meeting of the Board and also at the first meeting of the Board

after his/her appointment, in the financial year 2021-2022, given a declaration as required u/s.149 of the

Companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria oflndependence.

23. AUDIT COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED U/Sl 77(8) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had not been

accepted by the Board.

I5.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION OF TECHNOLOGY, FORETGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information pursuant to Section l3a(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of Companies
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resigned from the office with effect from l3th April,2022.

Ms. Sanjana Tiwari appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with effect from 26th

May,2022.

20. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors have met 6 (six) times during the financial year on 26-06-2021, Og-08-2OZl, 16-09-
2021, 09-ll-2021,29-01-2022 and 09-02-2022. The maximum time gap between any two meetings was
less than 120 days as stipulated under SEBI's Listing Requirements, 2015. Details of meeting are given in
the "Corporate Govemance Report" of the Annual Report.

2I.SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 09- I l-2021 , Mr. Ranj an Kumar Jhalaria the

lead Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting review the
performance of the non Independent Directors.

Details of the separate meeting of the independent Directors held and attendance of Independent Directors
therein are provided in the report on corporate governance forming part of this report.

22, DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Every Independent Director has, at the first meeting of the Board and also at the first meeting of the Board

after his/her appointment, in the financial year 2021-2022, given a declaration as required u/s.149 of the

Companies Act,2013 that helshe meets the criteria of Independence.

23. AUDIT COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED U/S177(8) OF COMPANIES ACT,2013
Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had not been

accepted by the Board.
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24.VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and employees in conformation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, to report concerns about unethical behavior.

The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the Company's website at

www.norbentea.com/pdf/vigil-blower.pdf

25.POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION ETC.

The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration includingcriteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided u/s.178(3) of the

Companies Act, 2013 is given as Annexure C in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. Accordingly,
the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2
is not applicable to the Company for FY 2022 andhence does not form part of this report.

All the related party transaction are entered on arm's length basis and are in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015.There are no materially significant related

party transactions made by the Company during the year.

27. DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company, have
been disclosed in the financial statements.

28.FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD

Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that' of its committees and individual
directors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the Criteria for Performance Evaluation of
the Directors of the Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
is given as Annexure D in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

29. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS AND OUTLOOK

Production of tea in India was 1329 million kgs. in 2021 compared to 1257 million kgs. in 2020.

Tea being essentially an agricultural produce, is always subject to enviro-climatic inconsistencies
which affects both quality and quantity of produce and thereby your Company's performance. The

Company's income is from sale of tea. The costs of production of tea, comprises of various inputs
which are required to be met by the Company as stipulated under various statutes including the

Plantation Labour Act. The Company's main business is plantation, processing and sale of tea. Tea

being a Seasonal Industry, the plantation activities is subject to the vagaries of nature. The crop
yield depends on the climatic conditions to a very large extent.

b) RISKS AND CONCERN

To maintain the level of operations, while ensuring strict compliance of guidelines issued and

adhering to all preventive measures, has been a new challenge. The employees of the Company at

all levels have risen to this and there has not been any loss of life or fixed assets.

The plantation industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall, its

distribution, temperature, relative humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield. Since

timely information of weather plays a vital role for initiating steps towards application of

fertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are taken at the estates to get the weather information

well in advance.

c) COVID IMPACT

Partial lock down was imposed in May/June 2021 and the company complied with the Government

guidelines in this regard.
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24.Y[GIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER pOLICy)
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and employees in conformation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, to report concems about unethical behavior

The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the Company's website at
www.norbentea.com/pdf/vi gi l-blower. pdf

2s.POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION ETC.
The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided r/s.178(3) of the
Companies Act,2013 is given as Annexure C in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. Accordingly,
the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section l3a(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-2
is not applicable to the Company for FY 2022 andhence does not form part of this report.

All the related party transaction are entered on arm's length basis and are in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,20l5.There are no materially significant related
party transactions made by the Company during the year.

27. DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company, have
been disclosed in the financial statements.

28.FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that'of its committees and individual
directors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the Criteria for Performance Evaluation of
the Directors of the Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
is given as Annexure D in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

29. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS RBPORT
A) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS AND OUTLOOK

Production of tea in India was 1329 million kgs. in 2021 comparedto 1257 million kgs. in 2020.
Tea being essentially an agricultural produce, is always subject to enviro-climatic inconsistencies
which affects both quality and quantity of produce and thereby your Company's performance. The
Company's income is from sale of tea. The costs of production of tea, comprises of various inputs
which are required to be met by the Company as stipulated under various statutes including the
Plantation Labour Act. The Company's main business is plantation, processing and sale of tea. Tea
being a Seasonal Industry, the plantation activities is subject to the vagaries of nature. The crop
yield depends on the climatic conditions to a very large extent.

b) zusKS ANp CONCERN
To maintain the level of operations, while ensuring strict compliance of guidelines issued and
adhering to all preventive measures, has been a new challenge. The employees of the Company at
all levels have risen to this and there has not been any loss oflife or fixed assets.

The plantation industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall, its
distribution, temperature, relative humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield. Since
timely information of weather plays a vital role for initiating steps towards application of
fertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are taken at the estates to get the weather information
well in advance.

COVID IMPACT
Partial lock down was imposed in May/June 2021 and the company complied with the Government
guidelines in this regard.

c)
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d) SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is a Single Business Segment Company.

e) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations which provides reasonable assurance with regard to safeguarding the
Company's assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost control, preventing revenue leakages
and ensuring adequate financial and accounting controls and compliance with various statutory
provisions.

A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for
strengthening them.

f) FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational Performance have been provided in the
Report of the Directors.

g) HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT I INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company has built its workforce with a diverse background .of individuals - essential for the
kind of organization that it is. The company constantly endeavours to provide a platform where
people have opportunities to actualize their maximum potential through work which helps to
stretch their intellect. Continuous efforts are on for a work-culture which encourages innovation,
transparency in communication, trust and amity.

h) CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements made in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be "Forward Looking Statements" within
the meaning of applicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the currently held
beliefs and assumptions of our management, which are expressed in good faith and in their opinion,
reasonable. Actual results could differ from those expressed and implied since the Company's
operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the
Company. Several factors could make a significant difference to the Company's operations which
includes climatic conditions, economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government
regulations and taxation, natural calamities, raw material price changes, domestic supply and prices
conditions, company's success in attracting and retaining Key Personnel, integration and re­

structuring activities, general business and economic conditions over which the Company does not
have any direct control.

30. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy
for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, which in the opinion of the
Board, may threaten the existence of the Company. The Board monitors and reviews periodically
various aspects of Risk Management policy. At present no particular risk whose adverse impact
may threaten the existence of the Company is visualized.

31. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKSHOP
Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that very women

employee is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero- tolerance towards sexual
harassment invites serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. The policy
allows every employee to freely report any such act and promote action will be taken thereon. The
policy lays down severe punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the

year under review, there were no cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to
the sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
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32. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by theregulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations infuture.

33. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of the Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,your Directors confirm that:

i. Applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts forthe year ended 31st March, 2022 with proper explanation relating.to material departures, if any.ii. Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates havebeen made which are reasonable and prudent and have been applied so as to give a true and fairview of the state of affairs of the Company in respect of the financial year ended 31st March, 2022and of the loss of the Company for that period.
111. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records inaccordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of theCompany and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
iv. Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been prepared on the basis of goingconcern concept.

v. The Directors have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Companydetailing the policies and procedures and these internal financial controls are adequate and arebeing operated effectively.

vr. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable lawsand such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
34. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION U/S.19·7 (12) OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATIONOF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

%
Ratio of the

remuneration ofincrea
each director :S.No. Name Designation se in

median
remun

remuneration oferation
the employees

1 Manoi Kumar Daga Managing Director NIL 5.01:1
2 Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria Director # NIL
3 Swati Agarwal Director # NIL
4 Balkrishan Agarwal Director # NIL
5 Dipak Tiwari Director # NIL
6 Tanusree Chatterjee Director # NIL
7 Neha Gupta* CFO(Resignedon 13.04.2022) 711.09

-

8 Sanjana Tiwari(a), CFO(Joinedon 26.05.2022)
9. Mira Halder Company Secretary 12:,99 -

#Director's sitting fees is not considered for the purpose of this calculation.

*Ms. Neha Gupta resigned on 13thApril, 2022

@Ms. Sanjana Tiwari was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company on 26thMay, 2022

The Company has 91 employees as on 31st March, 2022.
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Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 2.56: 1.

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase in
managerial remuneration is 0.03: 1.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between
Workers Associations, State Government and Representatives of the Tea Industry. Remuneration
paid to other Employees are fixed. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneration paid is as per
the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

35. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As on March 31, 2022 the Company did not have any employee in the category specified in Rule
5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

36. AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is given as Annexure E in the
Annexure forming part of this report.

37. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

38. STOCK EXCHANGE(S)
The application for revocation of suspension in trading of Equity Shares of the Company at Bombay Stock

Exchange is awaiting their approval. The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the National Stock

Exchange oflndia Limited.

39. APPRECIATION

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Local Gram

Panchayat, Government Departments, Banks, Stakeholders and all others. Special thanks and appreciation
are conveyed to State Bank of India, our banker for providing Covid line of credit to tide over difficult
times.

By Order of the Board

For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

Regd.Office:
I SB, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rdFloor

Kolkata-700001.

Date: 261hMay, 2022
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MAN OJ KUMAR DAGA

(Chairman & Mg. Director)
DIN: 00123386
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The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between
Workers Associations, State Government and Representatives of the Tea Industry. Remuneration
paid to other Employees are fixed. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneration paid is as per
the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

35. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31,2022 the Company did not have any employee in the category specified in Rule
5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

36. AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is given as Annexure E in the
Annexure forming part of this report.

37. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRBTARJAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS
During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSD.

38. STOCKEXCHANGE(S)
The application for revocation of suspension in trading of Equity Shares of the Comp any at Bombay Stock
Exchange is awaiting their approval. The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

39. APPRECIATION
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Local Gram
Panchayat, Govemment Departments, Banks, Stakeholders and all others. Special thanks and appreciation
are conveyed to State Bank of India, our banker for providing Covid line of credit to tide over difficult
times.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

Regd.Office:
158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata-700001.
Date:26th May,2022

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Chairman & Mg. Director)

DIN: 00123386
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE: "A"

FORMNo.MR3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended On 31st March, 2022

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and R?le No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited

15-B, HemantaBasu Sarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata- 700001

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors of Norben Tea & Exports Limited

(L01132WB1990PLC048991) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of

the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and

the adherence to good corporate practices by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (hereinafter called

the Company) having its Registered Office at 15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-

700001, West Bengal. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a mannerthat provided us a reasonable

basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed

and other records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby

report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year

ended on 31st March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and returns filed and other

records maintained by Norben Tea & Exports Limited ("the company') for the financial year

ended on 31st March, 2022 'according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;- (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURB. (6A''

FORM No. MR3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended On 31't March,2022

(Pursuant to section 204(t) of the Companies Act,20I3 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2011)

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-8, HemantaBasu Sarani,
3rd FIoor, Kolkata-700001

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors of Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(L01132WB1990PLC048991) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the financial year ended 3lst March,2022.

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and

the adherence to good corpbrate practices by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (hereinafter called

the Company) having its Registered Office at 15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-
700001, West Bengal. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner.that provided us a reasonable

basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory complianceb and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby

report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year

ended on 3lst March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and returns filed and other
records maintained by Norben Tea & Exports Limited ("the company') for the financial year

ended on 3lst March, 2)22'according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act,2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereundpr;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
BorrowingsT (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018. (Not applicable to the company during the Audit

period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat

Equity) Regulations, 2021. (Not applicable to the company during the Audit period).

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations. 2008. (Not applicable to the company during the Audit period).

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit period).

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(Not applicable to the company during the Audit period).

(vi) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the company as

per the Management Representation letter issued by the company of even date:-

(a) The Tea Act, 1953and rules thereunder

(b) The Food Safety and Standard Act, 2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules, 2011.

(c) The Tea waste control (Order) 1959

(d) The Tea Marketing Control Order,2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock

Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above. Subject to the following observation

2. I

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
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(b) The Food Safety and Standard Act, 2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules, 2011

(c) The Tea waste control (Order) 1959
(d) The Tea Marketing Control Order,2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above. Subject to the following observation
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(i) The Bombay Stock Exchange has suspended trading of Equity Shares of the Company due
to non-compliance of the eligibility requirement for continuous listing and the Company
has made an application on is" January, 2022 to BSE for revocation of suspension of
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and awaiting for their approval.

The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

In the meantime The Bombay Stock Exchange has allowed the Company to do all the
filings in compliance with the listing regulations and the Company is complying with the
filing requirements on regular basis.

We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the Audit period were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(ii) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

(iii) All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as

recorded in the minutes· of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board,
as the case may be.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the

Company has complied with the laws applicable specifically to the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period there are no specific events /actions which have a

major bearing on the Company's affairs.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 26th May, 2022

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493

M.No.: F7604

IUDIN:F007604D000394265 I
This report is to be read with' my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -A and forms
an integral part of this report.

(i) The Bombay Stock Exchange has suspended trading of Equity Shares of the Company due
to non-compliance of the eligibiJity requirement for continuous listing and the Co*puny
has made an application on 15th January,2022 to BSE for revocation of ,usp"nsion of
company with Bombay Stock Exchange and awaiting for their approval.

The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

In the meantime The Bombay Stock Exchange has allowed the Company to do all the
filings in complianie with the listing regulations and the Company is ctmplying with the
filing requirements on regular basis.

We further repo( that: '

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the Audit period were canied out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(ii) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting uri fo,
meaningful participation at the meeting.

(iii) All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board,
as the case may be.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the
company has complied with the laws applicable specifically to the company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period there are no specific events /actions which have a
major bearing on the Company's affairs.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26th May,2022

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No. :F7604

UDIN: F007 604D00039 4265

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -A and forms
an integral part of this report.
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'ANNEXURE A'

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited

15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of

procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 26th May, 2022

2.3

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493

M.No.: F7604

IUDIN:F007604D000394265 I

.ANNEXURE A'

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3"d Floor, Kolkata-700001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that coruect facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was Iimited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26th May,2022

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No. :F7604

UDIN : F007 60 4D00039 4265
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ANNEXURE: "B"

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER THE COMPANIES

(ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014

A. Conservation of enerzv

i) The ste12s taken or im12acton conservation of energy;

Company's operations involve substantial consumption of energy when compared to the cost of

production. Wherever possible energy conservation and efficiency measures have been undertaken.

The Company's business involves use of energy only for final processing of Tea leaves. For growing
of Tea leaves, the reliance is more on natural resources of energy than on fossil fuels.

ii) The ste12s taken by the com12anyfor utilizing alternate sources of energy;

The Company constantly considers up-gradation of existing machineries and processes to optimise
use of alternate sources of energy for processing of Tea leaves. Availability of natural gas through

pipeline or bullet tanker is eagerly awaited, which the Company can· readily use at a much lower cost

to both the Company and the environment.

iii) The ca12italinvestment on energy conservation egui12ments;
For all new equipments purchased, weightage is given to conservation of electrical energy to reduce

long term running costs.

B. Technology absorption

i) The efforts made towards technology absor12tion;
The Company subscribes to the Tea Research Association and implements their guidance and

recommendations. The Company has no R&D Unit as such.Further more, the Company is moving in

the direction of certifications such as Rain Forest Alliance and follows the Plant Protection Code,
Maximum Residue Levels and the Trustea Code.

ii) The benefits derived like 12roduct im12rovement, cost reduction, 12roduct develo12ment or im12ort

substitution;
The per hectare cost of insecticides and pesticides used for spraying in tea growing areas has

reduced. Only the items appearing in the approved list are used, by which the Company's produced
has become compliant with more markets having different approval parameters.

iii) In case of im12ortedtechnology (im12ortedduring the last three yeats reckoned from the beginning of

the financial year} -

a) The details of technology imported :NIL

b) The year of import :NIL

c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed :NA

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and

the reasons thereof; and :NA

iv) The ex12enditureincurred on Research and Develo12ment;
As covered under item (i) above.

C. Foreign exchanze earninzs and Out20

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange

Outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows.

Nil
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ANNEXURE. '(8,)

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014

A. Conservation of energy
i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energ.v:

Company's operations involve substantial consumption of energy when compared to the cost of
production. Wherever possible energy conservation and efficiency measures have been undertaken.

The Company's business involves use of energy only for final processing of Tea leaves. For growing
ofTea leaves, the reliance is more on natural resources ofenergy than on fossil fuels.

ii) Tfre steps taken Lv tlie iompany for utilizing alternate sources of energ-v:

The Company constantly considers up-gradation of existing machineries and processes to optimise
use of alternate sources of energy for processing of Tea leaves. Availability of natural gas through
pipeline or bullet tanker is eagerly awaited, which the Company can readily use at a much lower cost

to both the Company and the environment.
i ii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

For all new equipments purchased, weightage is given to conservation ofelectrical energy to reduce

long term running costs.

B. Technology absorption

i) The efforts made towards technolog.v absorption:
The Company subscribes to the Tea Research Association and implements their guidance and

recommendations. The Company has no R&D Unit as such.Further more, the Company is moving in

the direction of cerlifications such as Rain Forest Alliance and follows the Plant Protection Code,

Maximum Residue Levels and the Trustea Code.

ii) deri reducti
substitution;
The per hectare cost ofinsecticides and pesticides used for spraying in tea growing areas has

reduced. Only the items appearing in the approved list are used, by which the Company's produced

has become compliant with more markelr hav,ing different approval parameters.

iii) In case of imported osv (imoorted durins the last three veats reckoned from the besinnins of
the financial vear) -
a) The details of technqlqgy.impelql NIL
b) The year of import NIL
c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed NA
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and

the reasons thereof; and NA
iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:

As covered under item above.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Oulgq
The Foreisn Exchange in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreisn Exchange

Outso during the year in terms of actual outflows.
Ni1

L4



ANNEXURE :"C"

REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction

The Remuneration Policy of Norben Tea & Exports Ltd. (the "Company"), is designed to attract,
motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the

Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation

for shareholders.

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involving a balance

between fixed and incentive pay which reflect short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Appointment of Director(s) are being done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the

Companies Act. 2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION

Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level with

comparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members' required
competencies, efforts and the scope of the board function, including the number of meetings.

Fixed remuneration

Whole Time Director(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, alongwith basic

perquisites which is approved by the shareholders of the Company at a General Meeting.
Sitting Fees

·

The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the Company
keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and complexity.
Incentive programme, bonus pay, etc.

Presently, the Company does not have any incentive programme.
Reimbursement of expenses

Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account

rendered.

Pension scheme

The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of

the other Key Managerial Personnel to ensure that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in

comparable companies.

Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of

the following components:
· · Fixed salary
·· Bonus

· · Benefits, e.g. use of company car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable

component in the salary structure.
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ANNEXURE:"C"

REMI]NERATION POLICY
Introduction
The Remuneration Policy of Norben Tea & Exports Ltd. (the "Company"), is designed to attract,
motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the
Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value creation
for shareholders.

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involving a balance
between fixed and incentive pay which reflect short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Appointment of Director(s) are being done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the
Companies AcL2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION
Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level with
comparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members' required
competencies, effofts and the scope of the board function, including the number of meetings.

Fixed remuneration
Whole Time Director(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, alongwith basic
perquisites which is approved by the shareholders of the Company at a General Meeting.
Sittine Eqes
The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the Company
keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and complexity.
Incentive programme. bonus pay. etc.

Presently, the Company does not have any incentive programme.
Reimbursement of expenses
Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account
rendered.
Pension scheme
The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme.
REMUNERATION TO OTHER MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of
the other Key Managerial Personnel to ensure that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in
comparable companiqs.

Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of
the following components:
" Fixed salary
" Bonus
" Benefits, e.g. use ofcompany car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
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Personal benefits

Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits, including

company car, free telephone, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and magazines. The

extent of individual benefits are not necessarily same for each individual member of the Executive

Management.

Other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies:
· · Accident insurance

· · Health insurance

· · Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Notice of termination

The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months' notice on either side.

Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.

Retirement Benefits

Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a

defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.

Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

Disclosure

The total remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of

other employees and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in comparable

companies.
Other Employees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following

components:
· · Fixed salary
·· Bonus

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable

component in the salary structure.
.

'

Other benefits

Housing/Housing Repair Allowance.

Notice of termination

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.

Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.

Retirement Benefits

Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a

defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.

Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of director

The Company will follow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013

and under Regulation 19(4) of the Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchange(s) in

determining qualifications,positive attributes and independence of director.
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Personal benefits
Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits, including

company car, free telephone, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and magazines. The

extent of individual benefits are not necessarily same for each individual member of the Executive

Management.

Other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies
" Accident insurance
" Health insurance
" Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Notice of termination
The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months' notice on either side.

Redundancv pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.
Retirement Benefits
Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a

defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.

Gratuity is covered as per the Act.
Disclosure
The total remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of
other employees and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in comparable

companies.
Other Employees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following
components:
" Fixed salary
" Bonus

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically

reviewed based on performance appraisal.

Variable components
Fiesently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable

component in the salary structure.
Other benefits
Housing/Flousing Repair Al lowance.
Notice of termination
As per the prevailing laws of the State Government'
Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.
Retirement Benefits
Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a

defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.

Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

Criteria for determining qualifications. positiye attributes and independence of director
fne Company will follow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act,201.3

and under Regulation 19(a) of the Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchange(s) in

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of director.
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ANNEXURE: "D"

THE CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible to create a process for making such assessment to report annually to the Board on the
results of the assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of
the Board. The various Committees of the Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment of their
performance and respective Terms of Reference.

Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and
Individual Directors shall also be done as outlined below:
The Company will follow a seven step system of the following processes for evaluation:
METHODOLOGY

What the Company hopes to achieve?

Clearly identified objectives will enable the Company to set specific goals for the evaluation and
make decisions about the scope of the review. Such issues as the complexity of the performance
problem, the size of the board, the stage of organisational life cycle and significant developments in
the firm's competitive environment will determine the issues the Company wishes to evaluate.
Who will be evaluated?

With the objectives for the evaluation set, the Company needs to decide whose performance will be
reviewed to meet them.

The Company needs to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees),
individual directors (including the roles of chairperson and/or lead independent director), and key
governance personnel (generally the CFO and company secretary).
What will be evaluated?

Having established the objectives of the evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to

achieve those objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation becoming specific. It is now

necessary to elaborate these objectives into a number of specific topics to ensure that the evaluation

(1) clarifies any potential problems, (2) identifies the root cause(s) of these problems, and (3) tests
the practicality of specific governance solutions, wherever possible. This is necessary whether the
board is seeking general or specific performance improvements ·and will suit boards seeking to

improve areas as diverse as board processes, director skills, competencies and motivation, or even

boardroom relationships.
Who will be asked?

Internally, Board members, the CEO, senior managers and, in some cases, other management
personnel and employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on elements of a

company's governance system.
Externally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review.

Similarly, in some situations, government departments, major customers and suppliers may have
close links with the board and be in a position to provide useful information on its performance.
What techniques will be used?

Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives of the evaluation, and the resources available,
boards may choose between a range of qualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evaluation?

The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate
person is to conduct the evaluation. If the review is an internal one, the chairperson commonly
conducts the evaluation. However, there are times when it may be more appropriate to delegate
either to a non-executive or lead director, or to a board committee. In the case of external

evaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with expertisein the areas of corporate
governance and performance evaluation may lead the process.
What do you do with the results?

Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be
released to the board in all but the most unusual of circumstances. Where the evaluation objectives
are focused entirely on the board, board members will simply discuss the results among
themselves.
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ANNEXURE. (.D))

THE CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible to create a process for making such assessment to report annually to the Board on the
results of the assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of
the Board. The various Committees of the Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment of their
performance and respective Terms of Reference.
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and
Individual Directors shall also be done as outlined below:
The Company will follow a seven step system of the following processes for evaluation:
METHODOLOGY
What the Company hopes to achieve?
Clearly identified objectives will enable the Company to set specific goals for the evaluation and
make decisions about the scope of the review. Such issues as the complexity of the performance
problem, the size of the board, the stage of organisational life cycle and significant developments in
the firm's competitive environment will determine the issues the Company wishes to evaluate.
Who will be evaluated?
With the objectives for the evaluation set, the Company needs to decide whose performance will be
reviewed to meet them.
The Company needs to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees),
individual directors (including the roles of chairperson and/or lead independent director), and key
govemance personnel (generally the CFO and company secretary).
What will be evaluated?
Having established the objectives of the evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to
achieve those objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation becoming specific. It is now
necessary to elaborate these objectives into a number ofspecific topics to ensure that the evaluation
(1) clarifies any potential problems, (2) identifies the root cause(s) of these problems, and (3) tests
the practicality of specific governance solutions, wherever possible. This is necessary whether the
board is seeking general or specific performance improvementS'and will suit boards seeking to
improve areas as diverse as board processes, director skills, competencies and motivation, or even
boardroom relationships.
Who will be asked?
Intemally, Board members, the CEO, senior managers and, in some cases, other management
personnel and employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on elements of a
company's govemance system.
Extemally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review.
Similarly, in some situations, govemment departments, major customers and suppliers may have
close links with the board and be in a position to provide useful information on its performance.
What techniques will be used?
Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives of the evaluation, and the resources available,
boards may choose between a range of qualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evaluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate

person is to conduct the evaluation. If the review is an internal one, the chairperson commonly
conducts the evaluation. However, there are times when it may be more appropriate to delegate
either to a non-executive or lead director, or to a board committee. In the case of external
evaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with eipertise in the areas of corporate
govemance and performance evaluation may lead the process.
What do you do with the results?
Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be
released to the board in all but the most unusual of circumstances. Where the evaluation objectives
are focused entirely on the board, board members will simply discuss the results among
themselves.
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ANNEXURE:"E"

AUDITORS' COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO

THE MEMBERS OF

Norben Tea & Exports Limited

(CIN: L01132WB1990PLC048991)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Norben Tea
& Exports Ltd. ("the Company"), for the year ended on 31st March, 2022, as stipulated in
relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the said Company with stock exchange.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to· the explanations given to
us, read with the matter described hereinabove, we certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of Security and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ('the Regulations'), of the said Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

41, N. S. Road,
4thFloor, Room No.404,
Kolkata - 700 001.

Place : Kolkata

Dated: The 26thDay of May, 2022
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For L.K.BOHANIA &CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRNo. 317136E

VIKASH MOHATA

Partner

Membership No: 304011

ANNEXURE:.0E,,

ON

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(CIN: L01 l32WB I 990PLC048991 )

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Norben Tea
& Exports Ltd. ("the Company"), for the year ended on 31't March, 2022, as stipulated in
relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing bbtigations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the said Company with stoik exchange.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementationi thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expreision of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to:the explanations given to
us, read with the matter described hereinabove, we certify thai the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter fV of Security and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ('the Regulations'), of the said company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

TE

41, N. S. Road,
4th Floor, Room No.404,
Kolkata - 700 001.

For L.K.BOHANIA &CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRNo.317l36E

VIKASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No: 304011

Place : Kolkata
Dated :The26th Day of May,2022
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulation")

1. Company's Philosophy

The Company firmly believes in adhering to established corporate governance practices in order to

protect the interests of investors and ensure healthy growth of the Company. The Company
stringently complies with the corporate governance practices as enumerated in the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

{hereinafter referred to as the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015}

The Company believes that the concept of corporate governance is founded upon the core values
of transparency, empowerment, accountability, independent monitoring and environmental

consciousness. The Company has always given its best efforts to uphold and nurture these values

across all operational aspects. As a means to this end, the Company formed a Board comprising
reputed experts, and inducted persons of eminence as Independent Directors. These people
contribute to corporate strategizing and provide external perspectives, wherever appropriate.

2. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises professionals drawn from diverse fields, resulting in a wide

range of skills and experience being brought to the Board. The Company's policy is to maintain an

optimal combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on 31 '' March 2022, the

Board comprised an Executive Chairman cum Managing Director, and five Non-Executive

Directors including four Independent Directors. The Company also had two women Directors on

its Board. The detailed profiles of all the Directors are available on the Company's website:

www.norbentea.com. The Company complied with the provisions of Section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 with respect to

the Composition of the Board.

The Company has an efficient and well appointed Board. The Committees are all duly formed and

Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary of the Company, acts as the Secretary to all the committee

meetings of the Company. All committee meetings are attended by such other Executives as

required.

The Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and

regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and

documents are made available to the Directors and the senior management for effective decision­

making at the meeting.

Composition of Board

The Company has an Executive Chairman & Managing Director and more than 50% of the total

number of Directors are Independent Directors who bring independent views/opinions in the

Board's deliberations and decisions.

'2.9

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) ofthe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulatiirn")

1. Company'sPhilosophy

The Company firmly believes in adhering to established corporate governance practices in order to
protect the interests of investors and ensure healthy growth of the Company. The Company
stringently complies with the corporate governance practices as enumerated in the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
{hereinafter relered to as the SEBI Listing Regulations, 201 5 }

The Company believes that the concept of corporate governance is founded upon the core values
of transparency, empowerment, accountability, independent monitoring and environmental
consciousness. The Company has always given its best eiforts to uphold and nurture these values
across all operational aspects. As a means to this end, the Company formed a Board comprising
reputed expefts, and inducted persons of eminence as Independent Directors. These people
contribute to corporate strategizing and provide external perspectives, wherever appropriate.

2- Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises professionals drawn from diverse fields, resulting in a wide
range ofskills and experience being brought to the Board. The Company's policy is to maintain an
optimal combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on 3 I "t March 2022, the
Board comprised an Executive Chairman cum Managing Director, and five Non-Executive
Directors including four Independent Directors. The Company also had two women Directors on
its Board. The detailed profiles of all the Directors are available on the Company's website:
www.norbentea.com. The Company complied with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act,2013 and Regulation 17 (1) ofthe SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 with respect to
the Composition of the Board.

The Company has an efficient and well appointed Board. The Committees are all duly formed and
Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary of the Company, acts as the Secretary to all the committee
meetings of the Company. AII committee meetings are attended by such other Executives as

required.

The Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and
documents are made available to the Directors and the senior management for effective decision-
making at the meeting.

Composition of Board
The Company has an Executive Chairman & Managing Director and more than 50% ofthe total
number of Directors are lndependent Directors who bring independent views/opinions in the
Board's deliberat ions and decisions.
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During the financial year 2021-2022 the Board met 6 (six) times. The gap between any two

meetings did not exceed 120 days.

SN Date of Allended bv
0 Meeting of Mr. Manoj Mr. Ran Jan Mrs. Afr. Baikrishan Mr Dipak M,. Tanusree

Board of KumarDaga Kumar Swatt Agarwal Tiwari Chauerjee
Directors Jhalaria Aea-wat

I 26-06-2021 y y y y y y

2 09-08-2021 y y y y y y

3 16-09-2021 y y y y y y

4 09-11-2021 y y y y y y

5 29-01-2022 y y y y y y

6 09-02-2022 y y y Y' y y

*Y- Yes

dI .. d d Sh d I V f Li .

RTh . fe m ormanon as require un er C e ue 0 isting egu anon is as un er:

Relationships No. of No of
Tmal No. of Members.hip/between B0c1rJ other Attendance

Name
Directors

Category Designation
Meetings Directer-

Chairmanship held including
at last ACM

truer-se attended ship held
the Company

Mett1.hefs.liip CITTl.in11a11M1ip

Promoter & Managing
Mr.

Not related Executive
Director

6 4 J
Yes

ManoJKumarDaga (liable la retire by
2

Director
rotation)

Mr .RanjanKumar Independent &

Not related Non-execunve Director 6 l 2 2 Yes
Jhalarla

Director

Mrs.Swati lndependenr &

Agarwal
Not related Non-executive Director 6 2 - Yes

Director

Mr Balknshan
Not related

Non-executive Director (liable to
6 2 No

Agarwal Director retire by rotation)
-

lndependen.t &

Mr Dipak Tiwari Not related Non-executive Director 6 I - Yes

Director

Ms.Tanusree Independent &

Cbatterjee
Not relate-ct Non-executive Director 6 - - . No

Director

The names of listed companies wherein the above Board members are directors and category of

their directorship are detailed below. None of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director by SEBI/MCA or any such

statutory authority.

The Independent Directors comply with the definition of Independent Directors as given under

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015, At the time of appointment/reappointment and at the commencement of each

financial year, every Independent Director signs a declaration to confirm that he/she fulfills all the

conditions for being an Independent Director as '. Iaid down by the law. While

appointing/reappointing any Independent Directors/ Non-Executive Directors on the Board,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NR Committee) considers the criteria as laid down in

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Board

Diversity policy
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During the financial year 2021-2022 the Board met 6 (six) times. The gap between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days.

*Y- Yes

The information as r uired under Schedule V of Listin Re lation is as under:

The names of listed companies wherein the above Board members are directors and category of
their directorship are detailed below. None ofthe Directors on the Board ofthe Company has been
debarred or disqualified irom being appointed or continuing as director by SEBVMCA or any such
statutory authority.

The Independent Directors comply with the definition of lndependent Directors as given under
Section 149(6) of fte Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(l) (b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015. At the time of appointment/reappointment and at the commencement of each
financial year, every Independent Director signs a declaration to confirm that he/she fulfi s all the
conditions for being an Independent Director as '. laid down by the law. While
appointing/reappointing any Independent Directors/ Non-Executive Directors on the Board,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NR Cornmittee) considers the criteria as laid down in
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation l6(l) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Board
Diversity policy

s.N Date of
Meeling of
Board of
Ditectors

Atended by
Mr. Manoj
Kumor Daga

Mr. Ranjan
Kumar S]/,ati

Agarual

llh. Balkrishan
Agan'al :[iv,ari

Dipak Ms.
Chauetjee

Tokusree

I 26-06-2021 Y Y
2 09-08-2021 Y

l6-09-2021 Y Y
4 09-l I -2021 Y Y Y
5 29-01-2022 Y Y Y
6 09-02-2022 Y Y Y Y

Name

Relalionships

Directors
lnler-se

Category Designation

No. of
Board

Meetings
aitended

No of
other

Director-
ship held

TotalNo olMcmbcrship/
Chairmanship held including

the Company
at last AGM

Mr.
ManolKumarDaga No! relaled

&
Executive
Drrector

Managing
Drrector
(liable to retrre by
rota!ion)

6 4 l

Mr.RanjanKumar
Jhalaria

Not related
Indcpcndent &

Director
Direclor 6 I 2 2

Mrs.Swati
Aga.$al

Not relatcd
lndependent &

Director
Director 6

Mr. Balkrishan
Agarr!al Not relatcd

Non-executive
Director

Director (liable to
retire by rootron) 6 No

Mr Dipak Tiuari Not related
lndepcndent &

Director
Director 6 I

Ms.Tanusree
Chatterjee

Not related
Independent &

Director
Dircctor 6 No
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The names of the listed entities where the person is a Director and the category of directorship.

S.N. Manoj Kumar Daza (DlN:00123386)
Listed Entities Category of Directorship

l Joonktollee Tea & Industries Ltd. Non-Executive
2 Tongani Tea Companv Ltd. Non-Executive

None of the Non-Executive Directorsand Independent Directors holds any shares in the Company.

Number of committees in which a Director may serve excludes private limited companies, foreign
companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of morethan 10 committees nor Chairman of
more than 5 committees [as per Regulation 26(1)(b} of Listing Regulation] across all the public
limited companies in which he/she is a Director.

Membership/Chairmanship of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of
all the Public Limited Companies have been considered only.

Relationship between the Directors inter-se:

Name of the Director I Name of other Director

NA

I Name of Relationshio

*No other Directors in the Board are inter se related to each other.

Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors of the Company in
their own name, as on March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Name of the Director No of Equity Shares

Ranian Kumar Jhalaria Nil

Swati Agarwal Nil

Balkrishan Agarwal Nil

Dioak Tiwari Nil

Tanusree Chatterjee Nil

Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors

The Company in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, has
taken initiatives to familiarize its Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model of the company etc. through various programs.
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Man Kumar Da (DIN:0012338S.N.
Listed Entities ol DirectorshiCate o

I Joonktollee Tea & Industries Ltd Non-Executive
2 Ton Ltdi Tea Com an Non-Executive

The names ofthe listed entities where the person is a Director and the category ofdirectorship.

None ofthe Non-Executive Directorsand Independent Directors holds any shares in the Company.

Number of committees in which a Director may serve excludes private limited companies, foreign
companies and companies under Section 8 ofthe companies Act,20l3 shall be excluded.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more.than l0 committees nor Chairman of
more than 5 committees [as per Regulation 26(l)(b) of Listing Regulation] across all the public
limited companies in which he/she is a Director.

MembershipiChairmanship of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of
all the Public Limited Companies have been considered only.

Relationship between the Directors inter-se:

*No other Directors in the Board are inter se related to each other.

Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors of the company in
their own name, as on March 31,2022 are as follows:

Name of the Director No of Equity Shares
Ran an Kumar Jhalaria Nil
Swati Agarwal Nil
Balkrishan Agarwal Nit
Di ak Tiwari Nil
Tanusree Chatterjee NiI

Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors
The Company in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, has
taken initiatives to familiarize its Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business
model ofthe company etc. through various programs.

Name of the Director Name of other Director Name of Relationshi
NA
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Skills and its description
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Leadershio exnerience of runninz enterorise -

Experience in leading well-governed organisations, with an ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/

understanding of organisational systems and processes business and

regulatory environment, strategic planning and risk management,
understanding of emerging local and global trends and management of

accountability and nerformance.

Exoerlence of craftins Business Stratezies -

Experience in developing long-term strategies to grow small tea ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/

plantation business, consistently, profitably, competitively and ina
sustainable manner in diverse business environments and changing
economic conditions.

Finance and accountina Exnerience -

Experience in handling financial management of organisation along ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/
with an understanding of accounting and financial statements.

Exoerience in overseeinz laree and comnlex Su nnlv Chain •

Experience in overseeing large and complex supply chain operations, ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/ ,/

management of innovations, understanding of emerging technologies
includinz diaital information technolozies and their disruptive impact.
Understandinu use of Information across the tea value chain -

Understanding the use information across the value chain, ability to ,/

anticipate market and weather driven changes and disruption
impacting business and appreciation of the need to realise value and

controls across the orsanisation.

Confirmation that in the op10ion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the

conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the Management
The Board of Director is opinion that the Independent Directors are fulfill the conditions which is

specified in the Regulation 25 of the SEBl(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 and are independent of the Management of the Company.

Committees of the Boarci

With an objective to have a more focused attention on various facets of business, better

accountability and ensuring compliances, the Board has constituted the committees, which comply
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015,
these comprise:
I. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. Share Transfer Committee

4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Each of these committees has been mandated to operate within a given framework. The details of

composition of the above mentioned committees is available on the Company's website:

www.norbentea.com

Skills/Ex rts/Com tencies of the Board of Directors

Confirmation that in the oDinion of the Board. the Indeoendent Directors fulfill the

Skills and its description
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Leadershi rience of runnin enter rlse -
Experience in leading well-govemed organisations, rvith an
understanding of organisational systems and processes business and
regulatory environment, strategic planning and risk management,
understanding of emerging local and global trends and management of
accountabilit and erformance.
Ex rience of craftin Business Stra es-
Experience in developing long-term strategies to grow small tea
plantation business, consistently, profitably, competitively and ina
sustainable manner in diverse business environments and changing
economic conditions.
Finance and accountin Ex erlence -
Experience in handling financial management of organisation along
with an understanding ofaccounting and financial statements.

Chain -Ex rtence ln overseetn e and com lex Sula I
Experience in overseeing large and complex supply chain operations,
management of innovations, understanding of emerging technologies
inc Iud in act.di ve lmital information technolo ies and their disru

g use of Information across the tea value chain -Understandin
Understanding the use inlormation across the value chain, ability to
anticipate market and weather driven changes and disruption
impacting business and appreciation of the need to realise value and
controls across the organisation.

conditions soecified in these regulations and are independent of the Management
The Board of Director is opinion that the Independent Directors are fulfill the conditions which is
specified in the Regulation 25 ol the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 and are independent ofthe Management ofthe Company.

Committees of the Boartr
With an objective to have a more focused attention on various facets of business, better
accountability and ensuring compliances, the Board has constituted the committees, which comply
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015,
these comprise:
l. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Share Transfer Committee
4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Each of these committees has been mandated to operate within a given framework. The details of
composition of the above mentioned committees is available on the Company's website:
www.norbentea.com
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3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (AC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. The terms of reference of

the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing

Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Brief description of the

terms of reference of the Audit Committee are:

a. Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

information.

b. Recommend the appointment/removal of statutory auditors, nature and scope of audit, fixation

of audit foe and payment for any other services to statutory auditors.

c. Review with the management the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission

to the Board.

d. Review with the management, statutory and internal auditors, the internal audit reports and the

reports of statutory auditors.

e. Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal. Audit function, the internal control

system of the Company, compliance with the Company's policies and applicable laws and

regulations.
f Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e, the whole-time Finance Director or any other person

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,

experience & background, etc. of the candidate.

The Audit Committee may also review such matters as considered appropriate by it or referred to

it by the Board.

Composition and other details

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar

Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwaland, Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Chairman of the Committee, has expert knowledge of finance and

accounting.

unna t e financial year - e Committee met rve times as 0 ows:

S.No. Date of Meeting cf Audi/ Cammi/lee A/tended by

I 22-06-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr, Balkrishanxgarwal, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swati Aea-v .. 11l,Indenendent Director

2 09,08-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. Ba.krishan/vgarwal, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swaf Aearwal. Independent Director

3 16-09-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. BalkrishartAgarwal,Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swati Agarwal, Independent Director

4 09-11-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalarie, Independent Director

Mr. BalkrishanAgan-val, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swati Azarwal. lnde ... endent Director

5 09--02-2022 Mr. RanjanKumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishanagarwal, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swan Agarwal, lndec .. ndent Director

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria is the Chairman of the Committee was duly present at the Annual

General Meeting held on 11 '0
August, 2021. The Company complies with the Regulation 18 of

SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 with respect to composition, role and responsibilities of Audit

Committee.

D
. h 2021 2022 th 5 (ti )

. f II

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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3 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee (AC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in Regulation I 8 of the SEBI Listing

Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act,2013. Brief description of the

terms of reference of the Audit Committee are:

a. Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

information.
b. Recommend the appointment/removal of statutory auditors, nature and scope of audit, fixation

of audit fee and payment for any other services to statutory auditors'

c. Review with the management the quarlerly and annual financial statements before submission

to the Board.
d. Review with the management, statutory and internal auditors, the internal audit reports and the

reports of statutory auditors'
e. Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal .Audit function, the internal control

system of the Company, compliance with the Company's policies and applicable laws and

regulations.
f. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person

heading the finance ftnction or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,

experience & background, etc. ofthe candidate.

The Audit Committee may also review such matters as considered appropriate by it or referred to

it by the Board.

Composition and other detqils
The Audit committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar

Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwaland, Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Chairman ofl the committee, has expert knowledge of finance and

accou nt in g.

Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria is the Chairman of the Comniittee was duly present at the Annual

General 
"Meeting 

held on I l'h August, 2021. The Cornpany complies with the Regulation l8 of

sEBI Listing R-egulations, 201 5 with respect to composition, role and responsibilities oi Audit

Committee.
Durin the financial ear 2021-2022 the Committee met 5 five times as follows

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Attended byo Audit ConmitteeDate o MeetiSNo.
Mr. Rafljan Kumar Jhalari4 Independent Director
Mr. BalkrishanAganval, Non-Executjve Director

I endent f)irectorMrs. S\\'ati

22-06-2021I

Mr. Ranjan Kum.lr Jhalari4 Independent Director

Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal, Non-Executive Director
Inde endent DirectorMrs. Suati

2 09-08-2021

Mr. Raniar Kumar Jhalaria, lndependent Director
Mr. BalkrishanAganval, Nor-Executive Director
Mrs. Swati A dent Director

t6-09-20213

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria Ildependent Director

Mr. BalkrishanAganval, Non-Executive Director
al IndMrs. Swati nt Director

09-l l-20214

Mr. Ranja, Kumar Jhalari4 lndependent Director

Mr. BalkrishanAgartal, Non-Executive Director
al In endent DirectorMrs. Swati

09-02-20225
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4. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors to

evaluate compensation and benefits to Executive Directorts). The broad terms of reference are to

determine and recommend to the Board, remuneration payable to Executive Directors,

remuneration policy of the company and appraisal of performance of the Directors. The

Remuneration Policy is given in the Annexure 'D' to the Directors Report.

Composition and other details

The Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. RanjanKumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan

Agarwal and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

The functions of the Committee include:

• To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, posinve attributes and

independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to remuneration

of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Non Independent Directors,

the Chairman, the Board as a whole and other Committees

• To devise a policy on Board diversity. y Identifying persons who are qualified to become a

Director and who may be appointed in senior management.

• To evaluate, review and recommend to the Board, the remuneration of the Executive

Directors, striking a balance between performance and achievement.

• To discuss and decide whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of

Independent Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent
Directors.

During the financial year 2021-2022 the Committee met l (one) time as follows:

SNo. Date of Meeting of Nomination & Remuneration A/fended by
Committee

l 26-06-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Swan Azarwal, lndecendent Director

Remuneration of Directors

A sitting fee ofRs.2500/- is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending each meeting of the

Board and Rs.1000/- for each meeting of the Committee. During the Financial Year 2021-2022,

following was the remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending board meetings and

other committee meetings:

Director Sitting Fee

(Rs.)

Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria 26,000

Mr. Balkrishan Acarwal 25,000

Mrs. Swati Azarwal 26,000

Mr. Dioak Tiwari 16,000

Ms. TanusreeTiwari 16,000

The remuneration and terms of appointment of the Managing Director are approved by the Board

of Directors and the shareholders of the Company subject to Government approval whenever

required as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has only one whole time
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4 Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors to

evaluate compensation and benefits to Executive Director(s). The broad terms of reference are to

determine and recommend to the Board, remuneration payable to Executive Directors,

remuneration policy of the company and appraisal of performance of the Directors. The

Remuneration Policy is given in the Annexure'D' to the Directors Report.

Composition and other delails
The Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan

Agarwal and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

The functions of the Committee include:
. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to remuneration

oithe Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees'

. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Non Independent Directors,

the Chairman, the Board as a whole and other Committees
o To devise a policy on Board diversity. y Identifying persons who are qualified to become a

Director and who may be appointed in senior management.

o To evaluate. review and recommend to the Board, the remuneration of the Executive

Directors, striking a balance between performance and achievement.

o To discuss and decide whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of
lndependent Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent

Directors. .

During the financial year 2021-2022 the Committee met I (one) time as follows:

Date of Meeting of Nomination & Re unerqtion

Committee

Attended by

I 26-06-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kunlar Jhalaria. Independent Director
Mr. Balkishan Agarrval, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Swati al, endent Director

Remuneration of Direclots
A sitting fee of Rs.25001 is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending each meeting ofthe

Board and Rs.10001 for each meeting of the Committee. During the Financial Y ear 2021-2022,

foltowing was the remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending board meetings and

other committee meetings:

Sitting Fee

(Rs.)

Mr. Ranj an Kumar Jhalaria 26,000

Mr. Balkrishan A rwal 25,000

Mrs. Swati A al 26,000

Mr. Di Tiwari 16,000

Ms. TanusreeTiwari 16,000

Director

The remuneration and terms of appointment of the Managing Director are approved by the Board

of Directors and the shareholders of the Company subject to Covernment approval whenever

required as per the provisions ofthe Companies Act,20l3. The Company has only one whole time
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Director, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga who is the Managing Director (MD) of the Company. He has

been appointed for a term of 5 years from 01/04/2019 to 3'1/03/2024 as per the Agreement dated

27/07/2018. He is paid a salary of Rs.6,60,000/- (Rupees Six Lakhs Sixty Thousand) annually,
besides other perquisites. Notice or payment in lieu of notice is not applicable as per the

Agreement. The Company shall not pay any severance fees as per the Agreement. The Company
has not given any stock option.

During the Financial Year 2021-2022, following was the remuneration paid to Executive Director,

Director Salary Contribution Other Tenure of Service Variable Total

to PF & Benefits Contract Component remuneration

others

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

Mr. Manoj Kumar
5 years from

6,60,000 21,600 - 0110412019 to - 6,81,600
Daga

31/0312024

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. The

Committee responsible for looking after and dealing with grievance received from investors of

the Company.

Composition and other details

The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan

Agarwal, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga and Mrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria is the

Chairman of the Committee.

Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

The functions of the Committee include:

• Considering and resolving the grievances of security holders of the Company;
• Providing guidance for overall improvement in the quality of services to investors;

• Dissemination of factually correct information to investors and the pub] ic at large;
• Any other matter(s) out of and incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by

the Board

Number of Shareholders' complaints received so far I

Number not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil

Number of pending complaints Nil

With effect from 27th June, 2011 in terms of SEBI Circular No.ClR/OIAE/2/2011, dated 3'd June,
2011, processing and updating of all investor complaints in SEBI Complaints Redress System
(SCORES) is being done on behalf of the Company by its RT A.

6. Share Transfer Committee

Pursuant to Schedule V of Listing Regulation, the Board has delegated the powers of share

transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation etc. to Share Transfer Committee (STC) in order

to expedite the process of share transfer etc. As per Notification No.SEBJ/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24

dated 8'" June, 2018 and a Press Release No.49/2018 dated 3rdDecember, 2018, SEBI Circular

No.SEBJ/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14, 2021 in

continuation of SEB1 Circular No.SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ClR/2021/655 dated

November 03, 2021 vide which, the new provisions regulate-that except in case of transmission or
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Director, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga who is the Managing Director (MD) of the Company. He has
been appointed for a term of 5 years from 0110412019 to 3'l/0312024 as per the Agreement dated
27107/2018. He is paid a salary of Rs.6,60,000/- (Rupees Six Lakhs Sixty Thousand) annually,
besides other perquisites. Notice or payment in lieu of notice is not applicable as per the
Agreement. The Company shall not pay any severance fees as per the Agreement. The Company
has not given any stock option.

During the Financial Year 2021-2022, following was the remuneration paid to Executive Director:

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) was constituled by the Board of Directors. The
Committee responsible for looking after and dealing with grievance received from investors of
the Company.

Composition and other tletails
The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga and Mrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria is the
Chairman of the Committee.

Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer

The functions of the Committee include:
o Considering and resolving the grievances of security holders ofthe Company;
o Providing guidance for overall improvement in the quality ofservices to investors;
o Dissemination of factually correct information to investors and the public at large;
o Any other matter(s) out ofand incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by

the Board
Number of Shareholders' complaints received so far I

Number not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nit
Number of pending complaints Nil

With effect from 27n June, 201 I in terms of SEBI Circular No.CIR/OIAE/2/2011, dated 3'd June,
2011, processing and updating of all investor complaints in SEBI Complaints Redress System
(SCORES) is being done on behaliofthe Company by its RTA.

Share Transfer Committee
Pursuant to Schedule V of Listing Regulation, the Board has delegated the powers of share

transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation etc. to Share Transfer Committee (STC) in order
to expedite the process of share transfer etc. As per Notification No.SEBI/LAD-NROIGN/2018124
dated 8'h June,20l8 and a Press Release No.49l2018 dated 3'd December,20l8, SEBI Circular
No.SEBI/HO/MIRSDiMIRSD_RTAMB1PlClW202ll687 dated December 14, 2021 in
continuation of SEBI Circular No.SEBVHO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P1C[N202I/655 dated
November 03,2021 vide which, the new provisions regulate that except in case of transmission or

6

Director Salary Contribution
toPF&
others

Other
Benefits

Tenure ofService
Contract

Variable
Component

Total
remuneration

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

Mr. Manoj Kumar
Daga

6,60,000 2t,600
5 years from
0l/04/2019 to
3t/03/2024

6,81,600



transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless
the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. As such share transfer
committee shall hold meeting only when need arises instead of present practice of once in a

fortnight

The functions of the committee include:

• Approval of transmission or transposition of securities of the Company;
• To deal with. rematerialization requests and IEPF related matters;
• Overseeing of the performance of the registrar and share transfer agents of the Company;
• Redressal of shareholders' complaints relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual

reports and non-receipt of declared dividend, among others;
• Disposal of old stationeries of dividend warrants, among others;
• Issue of duplicate share certificates;
• Recommending upgradation measures for the standard of service to investors;
• Any other matter(s) out of and incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by

the Board.

Composition and other details

The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz.: Mr. Mano] Kumar Daga, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

There were no valid requests pending for share transfer as on 31" March, 2022. All requests for
dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares received in the aforesaid period were confirmed
or rejected into the NSDL/CDSL system.

A call centre has been set up to attend to the calls of the investors. The call centre number is (033)
2210-0553.

7. General Body Meetings
h IdLocation and time, where last three Annual Genera Meetings e -

Financial Date Location Time No. of Members presented by
year Special Person Proxy

ended Resolution

Rotary Sadan, 9412. Chowringhee Road,
2019 26.07.19 Kolkata-700020 10:30 a.m. 2 183 4
2020 29.09.20 Through Video Conferencing ("VC'') 10:30 a.m. Nil 59 .

2021 11.08.21 /Other Audio Visual Means (.. OA VM'"). 10:30 a.m. Nil 34 .

No special resolution was passed during the previous year through postal ballot.
No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

8. Means of Communication

The quarterly financial results are being sent to the Stock Exchanges and are being published in
the newspapers; The Financial Express (English daily) and in vernacular, DurantoBarta (Bengali
daily) as per proforma prescribed under the Listing Regulation.

The same is also displayed on the Company's Website: www.norbentea.com.

This website also displays official news releases.

The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, if any, are displayed on the
website.
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transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless
the securities are held in the demalerialized form with a depository. As suc-h share transfer
committee shall hold meeting only when need arises instead of present practice of once in a
fortnight.

The functions of the committee include:
. Approval oftransmission or transposition ofsecurities ofthe Company;
. To deal with rematerialization requests and lEpF related matters;
o overseeing ofthe performance ofthe registrar and share transfer agents ofthe company;o Redressal of shareholders' complaints relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual

reports and non-receipt of declared dividend, amongbthers;
o Disposal ofold stationeries ofdividend warrants, among others;
r Issue ofduplicate share cerlificates;
o Recommending upgradation measures for the standard of service to investors;
. Any other matter(s) out ofand incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by

the Board.

Composition and olher details
The committee comprises of 4 (fbur) Directors viz.: Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

There were no valid requests pending ior share transfer as on 3l't March,2022. AII requests for
dematerialisation and rematerialisation ol shares received in the aforesaid period were confirmed
or rejected into the NSDL/CDSL system.

A call centre has been set up to attend to the calls ofthe investors. The call centre number is (033)
2210-0553.

7. General Body Meetings
Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetin s held:-

No special resolution was passed during the previous year through postal ballot.
No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

Means of Communication
The quarterly financial results are being sent to the Stock Exchanges and are being published in
the newspapers: The Financial Express (English daily) and in vernacular, DurantoBarta (Bengali
daily) as per proforma plescribed under the Listing Regulation.

The same is also displayed on the Company's Website: wrvrv.norbentea.com.

This website also displays official news releases.

The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, if any, are displayed on the
website.
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Financial
year

ended

Date Location Tinre No. of
Special

Resolution

Members presented by

Person Proxy

2019 26.07.19
Rotary Sadan, 9412. Chowringhee Road,
Kolkata-700020 l0:30 a.m 2 183 4

2020 29.09.20 10:10 a"m Nil 59
2021 I1.08.21

Through Video Conferencing ("VC")
/Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"). 10:30 a.m Nil 34
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9.

(a)

(b)

(c)

General Shareholders Information

AOM: Date, Time and Venue

Financial Year

Dividend Payment Date

Friday, the 2911,July. 2022 at 11.30 a.m. Through
Video Conferencing ("VC") /Other Audio Visual

Means ("OA VM").

April 2021 to March 2022.

(d) Listing on Stock Exchanges : :

National Stock Exchange of India Limited,

Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot no: C/1

G Block, Bandra (E), Mumbai· 400 051.

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd,
Phirozeleejeebhoy Towers, 25<bFloor,

Dalal Street, Mumbai • 400 001.

(e)

(f)

Listing fees for the year 2022-23 have not yet been paid.

Stock code:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Suspension of trading

NORBTEAEXP

519528

The application for revocation of

suspension in trading of Equity Shares

of the Company at Bombay Stock

Exchange is awaiting their approval.

The Equity Shares of the Company
are traded at the National Stock

Exchange of India Limited.

Please refer last page of Directors'

Report.

(g) Stock Market Price Data and Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:

High, Low during each month in last financial year:

Market Price at NSE Sensex 'BSE)

Month & Year High Low High Low

April '21 6.10 4.90 50375.77 47204.50

Mav '21 6.30 5.15 52013.22 48028.07

June '21 8.10 5.60 53126.73 51450.58

July '21 6.85 6.00 53290.81 51802.73

Aug '21 7.80 5.95 57625.26 52804.08

Sent '21 7.40 6.30 60412.32 57263.90

Oct '21 8.30 6.50 62245.43 58551.14

Nov '21 8.10 6.60 61036.56 56382.93

Dec '21 9.50 7.00 59203.37 55132.68

Jan '22 l l.75 8.50 61475.15 56409.63

Feb '22 9.40 6.30 59618.51 54383.20

Mar'22 7.10 6.30 58890.92 52260.82

37

9
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

General Shareholders Information
AGM: Date, Time and Venue Friday, the 29d July, 2022 at 11.30 a.m. Through

Video Conferencing ("VC") /Other Audio Visual
Means ("OAVM").

April2021 to March 2022.

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd,
Phirozelee.ieebhoy Tou ers. 25'n Floor.
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

Financial Year

Dividend Payment Date

Listing on Stock Exchanges

National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited,
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot no: C/1

G Block, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051 .

Listing fees for the year 20ZZ-23 have not yet been paid

Stock code:
National Stock Exchapge of India Limited
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

NORBTEAEXP
519528

(0 Suspensionoftrading The application for revocation of
iuspension in trading of Equity Shares

of the Company at Bombay Stock

Exchange is awaiting their approval.

The Equity Shares of the ComPanY

are traded at the National Stock

Exchange of India Limited.

(e)

Please refer last page of Directors'
RePort.

Stock Market Price Data and Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:

High, Low during each month in last financial year

Month & Year
Market Price at NSE Sensex (BSE)

High Low High Low

April '21 6.1 0 4.90 503'15.77 47204.50

May'21 6.30 5. l5 s20t3.22 48028.07

June '21 8.10 s.60 53126.73 51450.s8

Jul '21 6.85 6.00 53290.81 s1802.73

Aug '21 7.80 s.95 57625.26 52804.08

S t'21 7.40 6.30 60412.32 s7263.90

Oct'21 8.30 6.50 62245.43 58551.14

Nov '21 8. 10 6.60 61036.s6 56382.93

Dec'21 9.50 7.00 59203.37 55 132.68

Jan'22 I 1.75 8.50 61475.15 56409.63

Feb'22 9.40 6.30 5961 8.s 1 54383.20

Mar'22 7.t0 6.30 58890.92 52260.82
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(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited

383, Lake Gardens, 1" Floor,
Kolkata - 700 045.

Telephone:033-4072 4051; Fax: 033-4072 4050

E-mail: mcssta@rediffmail.com
Website : www.mcsregistrars.com

(i) Share Transfer System:
The Company's shares are covered under the compulsory dematerialization list and transferred
in dernaterialised form through the depository systems of both NSDL &CDSL.Further, MCS
Share Transfer Agent Limited also being the Company's demat Registrars, requests for

dematcrialization of shares are processed and confirmation is given by them to the respective
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services India Limited (CDSL) within 15 days.

(i) Distribution of shareholding :

Category (No. of No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Equity
shares)

From To Physical Form De mat Physical Dem at Physical Dem at

Form Form Form Form Form

I 500 14921 9443 2187406 13562 l 3 18.62 11.54

501 1000 162 426 137800 357481 I. I 7 3.04

1001 2000 57 183 83700 288100 0.71 2.45

2001 3000 9 55 22400 156808 0.19 1.33

3001 4000 3 24 10200 89042 0.09 0.76

4001 5000 6 22 27900 117168 0.24 1.00

5001 10000 4 27 25400 206940 0.22 l.76

10001 and above 0 21 0 6683442 0.00 56.88

Total 15162 10201 2494806'·· 9255194 21.23 78.77

Grand Total 25363 11750000 l00.00

Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March 2022

Catezorv No. of shares held % of shares held

Promoters, Directors & Relatives 6044759 51.44

Non Resident Individual 30484 0.26

Indian Financial Institutions 0 0.00

Nationalised Banks and Mutual Funds 14400 0.12

Other Bodies Cornorate 370515 3.16

Public 5289842 45.02

Anv other Iclearinz member) 0 0.00

Total 11750000 100.00

(k) Dernaterialisation of shares and Liquidity :

Demat !SIN No. INE369C01017
.

(I) Outstanding GDRs/ AD Rs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely
imnact on Ecuitv ;

The Company did not have any outstanding GDRs/ AD Rs/Warrants or Convertible Instruments

as on 31" March, 2022.
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(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: MCS Share Transler Agent Limited
383, Lake Gardens, l't Floor,
Kolkata - 700 045.
Telephone:033-4072 405 I ; F ax: 033-4072 4050
E-mail : mcssta@rediffmai l.com
Website : wwu,.mcsregis rars.com

Share Transfer System:
The Company's shares are covered under the compulsory dematerialization list and transferred
in dematerialised form through the depository systems of both NSDL &CDSL.Further, MCS
Share Transfer Agent Limited also being the Company's demat Registrars, requests for
dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmation is given by them to the respective
depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services India Limited (CDSL) within l5 days.

Distribution of shareholdin
Category (No. of
shares)

No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Equity

From To Phvsical Form Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

I 500 14921 9443 2187406 13s6213 18.62 I 1.54
501 1000 162 426 137800 357481 1.17 3.04

l00l 2000 57 183 83700 288100 0.71 '\,t<

2001 3000 9 22400 156808 0.19 1.33

3001 4000 3 24 10200 89042 0.09 0.76
4001 s000 6 22 27900 I 1 7168 0.24 1.00
5001 10000 4 27 25400 206940 0.22 1.76
10001 and above 0 2t 0 6683442 0.00 56.88

Total 15162 10201 2494806 9255194 21.23 78.77
Grand Total 25363 I r750000 100.00

Shareholdin Pattern as on 3 I March 2022

Category No. of shares held % of shares held
Promoters, Directors & Relatives 6044759 51.44
Non Resident Individual 30484 0.26
Indian Financial Institutions 0 0.00
Nationalised Banks and Mutual Funds 14400 0.12
Other Bodies Corporate 3705 l5 3.16
Public 5289842 45.02

Any other (clearing member) 0 0.00
Total I 1750000 100.00

(k) Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity

Demat ISIN No. INE369C0l0l7
(l) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible lhstruments, Conversion date and likely

impact on Equity :

The Company did not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or Convertible Instruments
as on 31't March,2022.
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(m) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

(n) Plant Location: P.O. Kuripara, Dist: Jalpaiguri-735132, West Bengal.

(o) Address for correspondence: Norben Tea & Exports Limited

158 Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rdFloor,
Kolkata-700 001.

Telephone No: 2210-0553; Fax: 2210 0541.

(p) List of all credit rating obtained NIL

by the entity along with any
.. thereto during therevisions

relevant financial year, for all

debt instruments of such entity or

any fixed deposit programme or

any scheme or proposal of the

listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in

India or abroad.

10. Other Disclosure :

(a) Disclosures on materially significant NlL

related party transactions that may
have potential conflict with the

interests of listed entity at large

(b) Details of non-compliance by the The equity shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock

listed entity, penalties, strictures Exchange oflndia Limited with effect from June 26, 1996.

imposed on the listed entity by stock There were no instances of non .. compliance observed for regulations of

exchangets) or the board or any
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations.

statutory authority, on any matter
2015 covered under SEBl SOP Circular for last two years.

related to capital markets, during the
As per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 2015 ("Listing

last three years Regulation"), the Board of Directors of the top !000 listed entities (with
effect from April I, 2019) and the top 2000 listed entities (with effect

from April I, 2020) shall comprise of not less than six Directors.

The Company's interpretation was that this is applicable to all listed

entities across NSE, BSE and MSEl. in which case Company does not

fall in the top 2000.

Ncn-Comnlianee Details

Period June30, 2020

Regulation Regulation 17(1) (c)
(Composition of Board)

Details of Non- As per NSE the Company was not having
Compliance minimum six Directors on its Board from

Aoril 01, 2020 to Auzust 23, 2020

Days of non- For quarter ended June 30, 2020 - 91 days
compliance
Fine details For quarter ended June 30, 2020 -

Rs.4,55.0001·

Non-Cornoliance Details

Period Senternber 30, 2020

Regulation Regulation 17(1)(c)
(Composition of'Boardj

(m) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

(n) Plant Location: P.O. Kuripara, Dist: Jalpaiguri-735 132, West Bengal.

(o) Address for correspondence: Norben Tea & Exports Limited
r se H.r"";s;riis"r-i, :; er""r,
Kolkata-700 001.
Telephone No: 2210-0553; Fax : 2210 0541

(p) List of all credit rating obtained
by the entity along with any
revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all
debt instruments ofsuch entity or
any fixed deposit programme or
any scheme or proposal ol the
listed entity involving
mobilization ol lunds, u hether in
India or abroad.

NIL

10. Other Disclosure :

(a) Disclosures on materially signifi cant
related party transactions that may
have potential conflict with the
interests of listed entity at large

NIL

(b) Details of non-compliance by the
listed entity, penalties, strictures
imposed on the listed entity by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any
statutory authority, on any matter
related to capital markets, during the
last three years

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock
Exchange oflndia Limited with effect from June 26, 1996.
There were no instances of non-compliance observed for regulations of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 covered under SEBI SOP Circular for last two yeam.

As per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
Regulation"), the Board of Directors ofthe top 1000 listed entities (with
effect from April l, 2019) and the top 2000 listed entities (with effect
from April 1,2020) shall comprise ofnot less than six Directors.

The Company's interpretation was that this is applicable to all listed
entities across NSE, BSE and MSEI, in which case Company does not
fall in the top 2000.
N m Detail

Period mbcr l0- 2020
Regulation Regulation I7( l) (c)

Period June 30- 2020
Regulation l7(l ) (c)
(Composition olBoard)

Regulation

Non-Details of
Compliance

As per NSE the Conpany was not having
minimum six Direclors on ils Board lrom
April 01, 2020 to Ausust 23, 2020

non-Days of
compliance

For quarter erded June 30, 2020 - 9l days

Fine details For quarter ended June 30, 2020
Rs.4,55,0001

Co tion of Board)

39



Details of Non- A? per NSE the Company \Va.5 not having

Compliance minimum six Directors on its Board from

April 01, 2020 to Aueust 23. 2020

Days of non· For quarter ended September 30, 2020 - 54

comnliance days

Fiae details For quarter ended September 30. 2020 -

Rs.2,70,0001·

Non-Conmliance Details

Period September 30. 2020

Regulation Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 20 I 5(Relaled Party
Transaction)

Details of Non- As per NSE the Company has not complied
Compliance regulation under 23(9) of SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015 within 30 days from

the date of Board Meeting
i.e.1011112020.

Days of non- For quarter ended September 30, 2020 -
39

comnliance days
Fine details and waiver For quarter ended September 30, 2D20 -

thereof ?-1,95,0001- The Company filed WI

application to NSE for waiver of fine.

The NSE vide its

Ref.No.NSEILISTISOP!NORBTEAEXP

dated 20'' May, 202 l granted the waiver.

(c) Details of establishment of vigil The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism I Whistle

mechanism, whistle blower policy, Blower Policy. It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied

and affirmation that no personnel access to the Audit Committee.

has been denied access to the audit

committee

(d) Details of compliance with The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory

mandatory requirements and requirements of Corporate Governance as specified under

adoption of the non-mandatory Schedule II of the Listing Regulation.

requirements
The Company has adopted the following discretionary (non-

mandatory} requirements as stated in Schedule 11-Part E, Clause E

of the Listing Regulation: (i} adopting the financial statement with

unmodified audit opinion, (ii) the internal auditor reporting
directly to the Audit Committee.

(e) Weblinks to:

I. Policy for determining 'materia!' N.A.

subsidiaries

ti. FamiliarisationProgrammefor htt11:llnorbentea.coml11dflfamiliarisation12rogrammenorben.nd

lndenendent Directors f

iii. Related Party Transaction Policy htt12://norbentea.com/12dfirt1tnorben.12df

iv, Preservation of documents and htt[l://norbentea.com/gdf/Qreservationof documents andarchi

Archival Policy val nolicv.ndf

v. Code of Conduct httQ://norbentea.coml12dflcode-of-conduct.Qdf
vi. Whistle Blower Policy httQ:llnorbentea.com/11dflwhisle-blower.12df

vii. Policy on Harrassment h tt Q:IIn orbe ntea. com/ ll d fI!lo Ii c y-on-h arras sment. lJ,!f

viu. Code of Conduct Regulate, Monitor httQ:linorbentea.com/12df/code of conduct to regulate monito

and Report Trading r and reoort.ndf

lX. Code of Practices and Procedures httg:ilnorben1ea.co111/12ctf/codeof 11ractices and 12rocedures.Q
for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished df

Price Sensitive Information t
.

x. Ethics Policy ethics pollcy.pdf
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Non- Details

(c) Details of establishment of vigil
mechanism, whistle blower policy,
and affirmation that no personnel

has been denied access to the audit
committee

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle

Blower Policy. It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied

access to the Audit Committee.

(d) Details of
mandatory
adoption of
requirements

compliance with
requirements and
the non-mardatory

The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatorv

requirements of Corporate Governance as specified under

Schedule ll ofthe Listing Regulation.

The Company has adopted the following discretionary (non-

mandatory) requirements as stated in Schedule Il-Part E, Clause E

of the Listing Regulation: (i) adopting the financial statement with
unmodified audit opinion, (ii) the internal auditor reporting

directly to the Audit Con.rmittee.

(e) Weblinks to:

I Policy for determining'material'
subsidiaries

N.A

ll. FamiliarisationProgrammefor
Inde dent Directors

htto://norbentea.co m/odf/fam i I iari sati onnrosramnte norben. nd

f
lll Related Party Transaction PolicY http://norbentea.com/ pdfTrpt norben.pdf

tv. Preservation
Archival Polic

of documents and httD://norbentea.conl/ odf/preservati on of documents andarchi

val policv.pdf

Code ofConduct http://norben tea.com/odflcode-o nduct.odf

vl. Whistle Blower Policy http://norb ntea.conr/Ddflu hisle-blorver.ndf

vll Policy on Harrassment httD://norbentea. com/pdf/policy -on-harassment.pdf

vlll Code of Conduct Regulate, Monitor
and Re rt Tradin

htto:/rnorbe ntea.com/odflcode of conduct to resulate monito

rand reoort.pdf

lx Code of Practices and Procedures

for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information

httrr://norbentea. cotl/rrdlTcode of nractices and procedures.p

x Ethics Policy ethics policy.pdf
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xi. Food Safety Policy & Objectives food safety_policy and objectives

XII. Risk Assessment in Plantation and : risk_ assessment jn _plantation_ and_ factory .pdf

Factory

XII!. Policy for Determination of policy_ for_determination_ of_materiality_ of_events_or _inform

Materiality of Events or Information ation.odf

(f) Disclosure of commodity price N.A.

risks and commodity hedging
activities

(g) Details of utilization of funds raised NIL

through preferential allotment or

qualified institutional placement as

soecified under Regulation 32 (7A)

(h) Certificate from a Company The Company has received a Certificate from Agarwal A &

Secretary in practice that none of Associates, Company Secretary m practice that none of the

the Directors on the Board of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or

Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of

disqualified from being appointed Companies by the Board I Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any

or continuing as Directors of statutory.

Companies by the Board I Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such

statutory authority.

(i) Where the Board has not accepted NIL

any recommendation of any

committee of the Board. '

Provided that the clause shall only
apply where recommendation of I

submission by the committee is

required for the approval of the

Board of Directors and shall not

apply where prior approval of the

relevant committee is required for

undertaking any transaction under

these regulations

(j) Total fees for all services paid by NIL

the listed entity and its Subsidiaries,

on a consolidated basis, to the

Statutory Auditors and all entities in

the network firm/ network entity of

which the Statutory Auditor is a

part.

(k) The sexual harassment of women at The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in

workplace (prevention, prohibition line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at

and redressal) Act, 2013 Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress

complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees

(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under

this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral. During the year under

review, no complaints with allegations of sexual harassment were

filed.

ti I
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Companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any

statutory.

lA&Certificate from a ComPanY
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the Directors on the Board of the

Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being apPointed

or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Board / MinistrY
of Corporate Affairs or anY such

statuto authori
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Board of Directors and shall not

apply where prior apProval of the
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undertaking any transaction under
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(i)
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on a consolidated basis, to the
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which the Statutory Auditor is a

part.
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filed.
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11. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations,
20! 5 the Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related-party transactions and on dealings

with related-party transactions which can be accessed at: http://norbentea.com/pdf/rpt_ norben.pdf

All related-party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the transaction. Related­

party transactions of repetitive nature are approved by the Audit Committee on an omnibus basis for

one financial year at a time, All transactions pursuant to omnibus approval are reviewed by the Audit

Committee on a quarterly basis.

A confirmation of compliance pertaining to related-party transaction as per SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015, is also sent along with the quarterly compliance report on corporate governance.

As per the Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations the disclosures of related party

transactions on a consolidated basis have been submitted by the company for the half year ended 30th

September, 2021 to the Stock Exchanges and published the same on the website of the company.

Disclosure for the 2"dhalf and full year ended 31st March, 2022 will be submitted to the stock

exchanges within the stipulated time,

There were no materially-significant related-party transactions that may have potentially conflict with

interest of the company at large and all contracts/agreements/transactions entered into during the

period with the related parties were carried out at an arm's length basis at fair market value.

Details of such transactions as per requirements of INDAS24 are disclosed in Note 48 to the audited

accounts. A statement of these transactions was also placed before the Audit Committee and in the

Board meetings from time to time.

12. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company followed the guidelines as laid down in the IND-AS, prescribed by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India, for the preparation of the financial statements.

13. PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, RlGHT ISSUES AND PREFERENTIAL ISSUES,

AMONG OTHERS

The Company did not have any of the above issues during the year under review.

14. OBSERVANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTCTUTE OF

COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has issued secretarial standards on board meetings &

general meetings and also issued draft secretarial standards for payment of dividend, maintenance of

register and records, minutes of meetings, transmission of shares and debentures, passing of resolution

by circulation, affixing of common seal among others. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has

mandated SS-1 and, SS-2 with respect to board/committee meetings and, general meetings

respectively. The Company has complied with these standards.

I 1. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations,

2015 the Company has formulated a policy on materiality ofrelated-party transactions and on dealings

with related-party transactions which can be accessed at: http://norbentea.com/pdflrpt_norben.pdf
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pafty transactions of repetitive nature are approved by the Audit Committee on an omnibus basis lor
one financial year at a time. All transactions pursuant to omnibus approval are reviewed by the Audit
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traniactions on i consolidated basis have been submitted by the bompany for the half year ended 30th
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period with the related parties were carried out at an arm's length basis at fair market value.

Details of such transactions as per requirements of INDAS24 are disclosed in Note 48 to the audited

accounts. A statement of these transactions was also placed before the Audit Committee and in the

Board meetings from time to time.

12. ACCOUNTING TRE^A.TMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company followed the guidelines as laid down in the IND-AS, prescribed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants oflndia, for the preparation ofthe financial statements'

13.PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUES, RIGHT ISSUES AND PREFERENTIAL ISSUES'

AMONG OTHERS

The Company did not have any ofthe above issues during the year under review.

14. OBSERVANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia has issued secretarial standards on board meetings &
general meetings and also issued draft secretarial standards for payment ofdividend, maintenance of
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respectively. The Company has complied with these standards.
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15. AUDIT REPORT FOR RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Mis. Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the

total admitted equity share capital with the NSDL and the CDSL and the total issued and listed equity
share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the

total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with the

NSDL and the CDSL.

16. DISCLOSURE OF NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE REPORT OF SUB-PARAS AS DETAILED ABOVE, WITH REASONS

THEREOF

There is no non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras as

detailed above, thus no explanations need to be given save and except as mentioned in para (b) above.

17. DISCLOSURE OF THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DISCRET[ONARY REQUIREMENTS
AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE II HAVE BEEN ADOPTED

Office to Non-executive Chairperson : Since the Company is headed by Executive Chairman;
maintenance of separate office is not required.

The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

18. DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO([) OF

SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION (46)

The Company has complied with the requirements of aforesaid Regulations.

19. DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

As on 31st March, 2022, there are no outstanding shares of the Company lying in the demat suspense/
unclaimed suspense account.

20. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Company is duly placing a certificate to the Board from the Managing Director (CEO) and the

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of the proviso to

Regulation 33(2)(a) of the Listing Regulation. The aforesaid certificate duly signed by the said

persons in respect of the financial year ended 31" March, 2022 has been placed before the Board at

the Meeting held on 26'h May, 2022.

21. DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMP ANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the

Company pursuant to Clause D of Schedule V of Listing Regulation with Stock Exchanges.

All the members of the Board and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the said Code of Conduct on an annual basis.

15. AUDIT REPORT FOR RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

M/s. Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the
total admitted equity share capital with the NSDL and the CDSL and the total issued and listed equity
share capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with the
NSDL and the CDSL.

16.DISCLOSURE OF NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REOUIREMENT OF CORPORATE
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THEREOF
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detailed above, thus no explanations need to be given save and except as mentioned in para (b) above.

17. DISCLOSURE OF THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DISCRETIONARY REOUIREMENTS
AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE II HAVE BEEN ADOPTED

Office to Non-executive Chairperson : Since the Company is headed by Executive Chairman;
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REOUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF
SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION (46)

The Company has complied with the requirements of aforesaid Regulations.

19. DISCLOSUR.E, WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED
SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

As on 3l't March ,2022,lhere are no outstanding shares ofthe Company lying in the demat suspense/

unclaimed suspense account.

20. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
The Company is duly placing a certificate to the Board from the Managing Director (CEO) and the
ChiefFinancial Officer (CFO) ofthe Company, in accordance with the provisions ofthe proviso to
Regulation 33(2)(a) of the Listing Regulation. The aforesaid certificate duly signed by the said
persons in respect of the financial year ended 3 I "t March, 2022 has been placed before the Board at

the Meeting held on 26th May,2022.

21. DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the

Company pursuant to Clause D ofSchedule V of Listing Regulation with Stock Exchanges.

All the members of the Board and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the said Code ofConduct on an annual basis.
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22. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has framed Code of Conduct for all the Board Members, Key Managerial Personnel

and other Senior Executives of the Company who have affirmed compliance with the same as on 31"

March, 2022. Duties of the Independent Directors have suitably been incorporated in the code. The

Code is displayed on the Company's website: www.norbentea.com. A declaration signed by the

Managing Director &CEO is obtained by the Company.

In pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations 1992 (as amended), the Board has approved the 'Code of Conduct for prevention of

Insider Trading' and entrusted the Audit Committee to monitor the compliance of the code. The Board

at its meeting held on. 141hMay, 2015 has approved and adopted the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations, 2015 relating to the code of practices and procedure for fair disclosure of

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and formulated the code of conduct of the Company.

By Order of the Board

For NORBEN TEA & EXJ'ORTS LTD.

Date: 261hMay, 2022

MAN OJ KUMAR DAGA

Managing Director

DIN: 00123386

22. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Company has framed Code of Conduct for all the Board Members, Key Manag
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March,2022. Duties of the Independent Directors have suitably been incorporated in the code. The

Code is displayed on the Company's website: rvtvw.norbentea.com. A declaration signed by the

Managing Director &CEO is obtained by the Company.

ln pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations 1992 (as amended), the Board has approved the 'Code of Conduct for prevention of
lnsider Tradine' and entrusted the Audit Committee to monitor the compliance of the code. The Board

at its meeting-held on l4'h May, 2015 has approved and adopted the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider

Trading) Regulations, 2015 relating to the code of practices and procedure for fair disclosure of
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By Order ofthe Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

Date: 26th May, 2022

MANOJKUMARDAGA
Managing Director

DIN: 00123386
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Chartered Accountants

L. K. Behania & Co. 41, Netaji Subhash Road.
4th Floor. Room No. - 404

Kolkata-700 001

Off. - 2230 9902, 2231 1686

Fax - 033-2210 2438

Email: boharna2010@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUD!TORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

NORDEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN:L01132\IVB1990PLC048991

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Opinion:
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NORSEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the

Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to

Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state

of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and its Loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Basis for Opinion:
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the flnanciof Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of the Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI)together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit

of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. As per our audit and verification of books and records and fact finding etc. We have

determined that there are no separate key audit matters applied to this company which are communicated to

the audit's report. Our audit report is unmodified and self-explanatory,

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon:

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on financial statements does not cov??l??Jnformationand we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon. f ""/?'."r:,\
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L. K. Bohania & Co.
Chartered Accountants

NNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

41. Netaji Subhash Road,
4th Floor. Room No. - 404
Kolkata-700 001 .

ofl. - 2230 9902. 2231 1686
Fax - 033-2210 2438
Email . bohania2010@gmail. com

TO THE MEMBERS OF

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED

CIN: 101132W81990PtC048991

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Opinion:
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIM|TED ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to
Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "financial statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and its Loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for O rnron:
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(L0) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities lor the Audit of the Finonciol Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of the Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical respo nsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI'S Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Kev Audit Matters:
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiona I judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. As per our audit and verification of books and records and fact finding etc. We have
determined that there are no separate key audit matters applied to this company which are communicated to
the audit's report. Our audit report is unmodified and self-expla nato ry.

lnformation other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon:
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on financial statem
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

this other information, we are required to report that We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responslbllltv for the Financial Statements:

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair

view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash

flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control

systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
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Manasement's Responsibilitv for the Financial Statements:
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in lndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other lrregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Res oonsibilitv for the Audit of the Financial Statements:
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthis financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

ldentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of Internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial control
systems in place and the operatinB effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability ta continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of anyidentified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We described this matters in our auditors report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determined that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order'), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (111 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure- "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

[c] The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;
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' conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue ur . going concern. lf we
conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required to draw attention in oui auoitors report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion' our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to contlnue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other
matters that may reasonabry be thought to bear on our Independence, and where appricabre, related
safegua rds.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters thatwere of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. we described this matters in our audito/s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determined that a matter shouldnot be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Re oort on Other Lesa I and Resu latorv Requirements

1 As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 (,,the order/,), issued by the centrar
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (1L) of section 143 of the companiei Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure- "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and exptanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by raw have been kept by the company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2022,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"ANNEXURE - B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
requirement of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial position in
its financial statements;

(ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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under section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rure 7 ofthe companies (Accounts) Rures, 2014;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 3r,2022,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquarified as on March 31,
2022 frcm being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the AcU

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such contrors, refer to our separate nJport in
"ANNEXURE - B". our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company,s internal financial controls over financial reporiing;

(g) with respect to the other matters to be incruded in the Auditor,s Report in accordance with
requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the expranations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 1g7 of
the Act;

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial position in
its financial statements;

(ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There has been no deray in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
lnvestor Education and protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are materiar either individualy or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind offunds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity ("rntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the rntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on beharf of
the Company (,,Ultimate Beneficiaries,,) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are materiar either individualy or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including ioreign entity (,,Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing oi oth"r*is", thrt the
company shaI, whether, directry or indirectry, rend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on beharf of the Funding party
("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the rike on beharf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us

to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year.
Hence, compliance in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not

applicable.

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 26"' day of May 2022

For L. K- BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317136E

IVJKASHMOHATA)
Partner

Membership No. 304011

UDIN :?.'2J.Q.':f..Q././.?.Y.-J.fP..f..f..:J.f..Q.£
..

ll 5 tl
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonabre and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the financial year.
Hence, compliance in accordance with section 123 of the companies Act, 2013 is not
applica ble.

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 317136E

(VIKASH MOHATA)
Partner

Membership No. 304011
Place

Dated
: Kolkata
: 26th day of May 2022
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nANNEXURE • An TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements» of
our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022:

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the course of audit, we state that:

1. In respect of the Company's - Property, plant and equipment i.e. Fixed Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Fixed Assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

(b) As explained to us the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the records examined by us and based on
examination of the conveyance deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report that the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in
the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the
year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions {Prohibition)Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Refer Note
41 of the Financial Statements

2. In respect of its Inventories:

(a) As per the information obtained by us, the inventories have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Further, the
quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts

(c) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records
which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms or other Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

Cont. P/2
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4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security.
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To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the course of audit, we state that:

1. ln respect of the Company,s - property, plant and equipment i.e. Fixed Assets:

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Fixed Assets.
The company has maintained proper records showing fulr particurars of intangibre assets

(b) As explained to us the property, prant and equipment have been physicafly verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the records examined by us and based on
examination of the conveyance deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report that the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in
the name ofthe Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the
year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Companyas at March 3L,2022fot holding any benami property under
the BenamiTransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Refer Note
41 of the Financial Statements

In respect of its lnventories:
(a) As per the information obtained by us, the inventories have been physically verified by the

management at reasonable intervals and no discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed on such physicalverification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Further, the
quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts

(c) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records
which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not materiar.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms or other Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section j.89 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the order are not appricabre to the company and
hence not commented upon.

ing to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
tion 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments,
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5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from public are not

applicable.

6. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thvs, reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

7. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax and
other statutory dues applicable to it.

SI. No. Particulars Amount (Rupees In

Hundreds)
1. Provident Fund (Employer Portion) 18,463.87
2. Professional Tax 1,344.51

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory
dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date on when

they become payable, except following:

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents and
records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
are as under:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount (Rupees Period to which Forum where
statute in Hundreds) the amount dispute is pending

relates(Financial

Year)
Income Tax Income Tax 24,650.00 1995-1996 DCIT, Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 8,456.70 2010-2011 CIT(A), Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 62,557.70 2012-2013 CIT(A), Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 5,809.70 2013-2014 CIT(A), Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 11,714.64 2016-2017 CIT(A),Kolkata

8. There were no transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961). Hence comment on Paragraph 3(viii) of the said
Order is not applicable.

9. a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence comment on Paragraph 3(ix) of the said Order is not
applicable.
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The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence the directives lssued by the Reserve
Bank of lndia and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provlsions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from public are not
applica ble.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 14g(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus, reporting under
clause 3(vi) ofthe order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Provident fund, Employees State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and
other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident fund, Employees State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory
dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date on when
they become yable, exce following:

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents and
records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
are as under:
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Sl. No. Particulars Amount (Rupees in
Hundreds)

1 Provident Fund (Em lo er Portion) t8,463.87
2 ProfessionalTax L,344.5t

Name of the
statute

Nature of dues Amount (Rupees

in Hundreds)
Period to which

the amount
relates(Financial

Year)

Forum where
dispute is pending

lncome Tax lncome Tax 24,650.00 1995-1996 DCIT, Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 8,456.70 zo70-207L CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 62,557.70 2072-20L3 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 5,809.70 2073-2.074 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax Lt,774.64 2076-20L7 CIT(A), Kolkata
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There were no transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1951). Hence comment on paragraph 3(viii) of the said
Order is not applica ble.

a) As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence comment on Paragraph 3(ix) of the said Order is not
applicable.
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b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other

lender. Refer Note 49 of the Financial Statements.

c) The Company has taken term loan during the year and that is utilized for the purpose for which term loan

was taken, hence no adverse remark on the same.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis

have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries',
joint ventures or associate companies, hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

10. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence

comment on Paragraph 3(x)(a} of the said Order is not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares

or convertible debentures (fu!Jy, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Hence comment on

paragraph 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
·

11. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b] No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year.

c) As per Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, establishment of vigil mechanism is mandatory for

the company, however based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations
given by the management of the Company we have not came across any whistle - blower complaints
during the years.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi

Company. Hence comment on paragraph 3(xiil(a)[b){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

14. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the period under audit.

15. According to the information and explanation provided by the management, the company has not

entered in any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them as referred in

section 192 of the Act.

16. a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve bank
of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause -?llllil (a), (b) & (c) of the Order are not

,/,--.? 1•,,,,?,applicable to the Company and hence not commented upory,('?:;?_:'-:'._"f;\

/i-7/.? \'·,}, Cont P/4
':i'2. ,}i. ?'°' ! .';

•

• ",,-•''??;?_/
::,, '.

ll 3 ll
b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other

lender. Refer Note 49 of the Financial Statements.

c) The Company has taken term loan during the year and that is utilized for the purpose for which term loan
was taken, hence no adverse remark on the same.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries',
joint ventures or associate companies, hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

10. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence
comment on Paragraph 3(x)(a) of the said Order is not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Hence comment on
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable

11. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year.

c) As per Section 177(9) of the companies Act, 2013, establishment of vigil mechanism is mandatory for
the company, however based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations
given by the management of the Company we have not came across any whistle - blower complaints
during the years.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Hence comment on paragraph 3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

1.3. ln our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standa rds.

14. a) ln our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the period under audit.

15. According to the information and explanation provided by the management, the company has not
entered in any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them as referred in
section 192 of the Act.

16. a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve bank
not
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b) In our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company within the group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable.

17. Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given ta
us, the company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year;

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence, comment
on paragraph 3(xviii) of the said Order is not applicable.

19. According ta the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due;

20. The Company is not required to spend any amount in Corporate Social Responsibilities under the act.
Hence, comment on paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the said Order is not applicable

21. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO)of all the group companies and hence the other related information
is not applicable.

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 26" day of May 2022

For l. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317136E

?
{VlKASHMOHATA)

Partner

Membership No. 304011

il4il
b) ln our opinion, there is no core lnvestment Company within the group (as defined in the core
lnvestment companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable.

17' Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year;

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year. Hence, comment
on paragraph 3(xviii) of the said Order is not applicable.

19' According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due wiihin a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. we further state that our reporting is based on the facis up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
d ue;

20 The company is not required to spend any amount in Corporate Social Responsibilities under the act.
Hence, comment on paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the said order is not appricabre

21. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) order (cARo) of all the group companies and hence the other related information
is not applica ble.
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For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 317136E

Place

Dated
: Kolkata
: 26th day of May 2022

(VIKASH MOHATA)
Partner

Membership No. 304011
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"ANNEXURE - B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause m of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") - Referred to in paragraph 2lfl of our report of even date to the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 311 2022:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NORDEN TEA & EXPORTS
LIMITED ("the Company"), as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management ?fd directors of the company;

{/?;?'.?\
S'1

Cont P/2
··

••:;>,T;:./jii

,,ANNEXU RE-B"T THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
STATEMENTS OF NORBEN TEA & EXPO RTS LIMITED

F EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL

Report on the lnternal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Com antes 2013 'th Act" Referred tn ra h2 of our re o of even d e to the
financi al stateme nts of the Comoanv for the vear ended March 31,2022:

We have audited the internal financiai controls over financial reporting of NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS
LlMlrED ("the company"), as of March 3L, zo2z, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibilityfor lnternal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of lnternal
Financial controls over financial Reporting rssued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.
These responsib ilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective Company's poricies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Noie on Audit of
lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the ,,Guidance Note,,) issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the auditto obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internalfinancial controls system over financial reporting ofthe company.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company,s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) periain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principres, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onry
in accordance with authorizations of managemel!.aId directors of the company;
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and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317136E

(VIKASHMOHATA)
Partner

Membership No. 304011

Place : Kolkata

Dated : 26'h day of May 2022
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lt2il
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 3l, ZOZZ,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial
controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia.

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 317136E

(VIKASH MOHATA)
Partner

Membership No. 304011
Place

Dated
: Kolkata
: 26th day of May 2022
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ASSETS )/c.,
fl) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(b) Capital Work in Progress

(cl Financial Assets

(i}Trade Receivables

(ii) Other Financial Assets

(d) Neu-Current Tax Asset (Net)

(e) Deferred tax assets {net)

(2l CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories

(b) Biological Assets other than bearer plants

(c} Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Trade Receivables

{iij)Cash and Cash Equivalents

(\vJ Bank Balance other than {iii)above

(v) loans & Advances

(vi) Other Financial Assets

(d} Other Current Assets

Total Assets

:tii 'AmC>unt(Rs.illl.hUl'ldrecls)

5 20,73,051.17 20,18,807.69

5.1 18,649.00

6 3,107.55 3,397.95

8 17,503.18 20,494.93

9 52,384.43 37,823.27

10 74,292.49 1.47,287.65 81,326.09 1,43,042.24

11 1,00,392.86 48,047.10

12 5,478.44 5,478.44

13 404.71 404.71

6 28,179.56 27,818.10

14 3,237.79 14,362.51

15 7,1S6.11 7,156.11

7 1,250.00 1,250.00

8 18,240.85 58,469.02 19,467.43 70,458.86

16 6,263.87 10,665.00

24,09,592.01 22,96,499.33

19 4,96,453.03 4,96,4S3.03 4,25,568.53 4,25,568.53

20 52,727.12 49,888.59

21 2,72,870.72 2,30,746.20

22 48,622.02 49,523.15

23 18,318.30 3,39,811.04 15,645.22 2,95,914.57

24 19,003.96 14,937.10

25 40,821.80 24,697.76

24,09,S9Z.Ol 22,96,499.33

II EQUITY'ANDLIABlilTIES

(1l EQUITY

(ai Equity Share Capital

lb) Other Equity

l2l LIABILITIES

(a) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financlal liabilities

(i} Borrowings

(bl Provisions

(bl CURRENT LIABILITIES

{a) Financial Liabilities

{i}Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables
{iii)Other Financial Liabllities

(bl Employee's Benefits obligations

(c) Other liabilities

Total Equity and liabilities

17

18

11,75,000.00

2,85,775,06

11,75,000.00

14,60,775.06 l---'3"''"'l0e,,;;:.49e;2,:.7:..;8::...14,85,492.78

Corporate Information 1

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements &

Presentation 2

Significant Accounting Policies 3

Significant Judgements & Use of Estimates 4

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of

Partner

Membership No. 304011

Place : Kolkata

Date , The 26th day of May, 2022.
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RANJAN KR. JHAlARIA

Independent Director

{DIN:05353976)

? 7?
?ANATIWARI

Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board

,.

S•SO

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director

{DIN:00123386)

??<WI--
MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343

.>-.·::,:····,VI KASH MOHATA

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

the Financial Statements.

As per our Report annexed of even date

I1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, Plant and EquiPment

(b) Capital Work in Progress

(c) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Other Financial Assets

(d) Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

(e) Deferred tax assets (net)

5

5.1

6

8
9

10

TL

L2

13

6

t4
15

7

8

15

20,73,OsL.L7
18,649.00

20,18,807.69

3,107.55
17,503.18
52,384.43
74,292.49 L,47,287.65

3,397.95
20,494.93
37,823.27
81,326.09 L,43,042.24

(2) CURRENT ASSETS

(a) lnventories
(b) Biological Assets other than bearer plants

(c) Financial Assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade Receivables

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(iv) Bank Baiance other than (iii) above

(v) Loans & Advances

(vi) Other Financial Assets

(d) Other Current Assets

1,00,392.86
5,478.44

48,047.L0

5,478.44

404.71

28,L79.56

3,237.79
7,156.1L

1,250.00

404.71

27,818.10
t4,362.5L
7,156.11
1,250.00

58,469.O2

6,26?.87

67.43 70,458.86

10,665.00

Total Assets t 22,9

(1) EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

(2) LIABILITIES

(a) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Provisions

(b) CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii)Trade Payables

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

t7
18

11,75,000.00 11,75,000.00

775.06 14,60,775.06 78 ].4,85,492.78

19

20

2L

22
23

24

25

4,96,453.03

52,727.L2

4,25,568.53

49,888.59

2,72,870.72

48,622.02

2,30,746.20
49,523.t5

3,39,811.04 2 2,95,9L4.57

(b) Employee's Benefits obligations
(c) Other Liabilities

19,003.96
40,821.80

14,937.t0
24,697.76

Total Equity and Liabilities

Corporate lnformation
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements &

Prese ntati on

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Use of Estimates

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of

the Financial Statements

1

2

3

4

5 50

As per our Report annexed of even date For and on behalf of the Board

L*+::-
RANJAN KR. JHALARIA

lndependent Director
(DlN:053s3975)

6,'1l'-^7*.;-'-'
'snrulnrul ttwnRI

Chief Financial Officer

s.-"\ " \ D
For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 317136E
,t,,1

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
(DlN:00123386)

V irt
Wrs. [efurr--

VIKASH MOHATA

Pa rtner
Membership No. 304011
Place : Kolkata

MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343

Date : The 26th day ol MaY,2022.
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5,96,702.55 7,46,187.98

6,714.91 5,940.47

6,03,417.46 7,52,128.45

(36,558.55) (8,412.45)

3,63,803.83 3,45,896.94

66,063.70 68,449.10

52,206.32 49,594.98

1,78,161.86 1,67,361.69

6,23,677 .16 6,22,890.26

(20,259.70) 1,29,238.19

995.00 13,750.00

(995.00) (8,642.00)
9.27 {1,326.90)

6,368.00 7,715.42

(26,636.97) 1,17,741.67

2,584.85 {278.84)

(665.60) 71.80

1,919.25 (207.04)

(24,717.72) 1,17,534.63

34

33

28

29

30

31

32

26

27

(V)profit/(lossf??fpre,T?jfa{111• tVf

(VII :i:axF,o,en<.0°''11!\i

(a) Current Tax

(b) Mat Credit

(c) Income Tax For Earlier Year

(d) Deferred Tax

:?:m?a?l!?::i::?1?:1f:t?JL·r4;

i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss

[i. Income tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax) (VIII)

(I} Revenue from Operations

(11)Other Income

(IVIEX?fN?ES
(a} Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods

(b} Employee Benefits Expense

(c) Finance Costs

(d) Oepreciatlon and Amortisation Expense

(e} Other Expenses

·.· (X) EarQingsPer Sh??­
Nominal Value of Shares {Rs.10)

Weighted Average Number of Ordinal)! Shares outstanding

during the year

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share

1,17,500.00

(0.23)

1,17,500.00

1.00

Corporate Information

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements & Presentation

Significant Accounting Policies

SignificantJudgements & Use of Estimates

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial

Statements

1

2

3

4

5-50

As per our Report annexed of even date For and on behalf of the Board

RAl'l.lAN KR. JHALARIA

Independent Director

(DIN:05353976)

?-?- ( u..,.x,..""­

SANJANA TIWARI

Chief Financial Officer

f'..,,, L_ r,.
?-

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director

(DIN:00123386)

? \,.\o.llvl._
MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343

VIKASH MOHATA

Partner

Membership No. 304011

For L K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317136E
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7,46,187.98

5,940.47
5,96,702.55

6,7L4.9L
(l) Revenue from Operations
(ll) Other lncome

7,52,728.456,O3,4L7.46

18,412.4s)
3,45,896.94

68,449.10

49,594.98

t,67,36L.69

(35,558.55)

3,63,803.83
66,053.70
52,206.32

L,78,L6L.86

6,23,677.L6 6,22,89O.26

1,29,238.t9

13,750.00
(8,642.00)

(1,326.90)

7,715.42

995.00
(ees.00)

9.27

6,368.00

(2O,259.7O1

(26,636.e71 L,17,74L.67

(a) Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods

(b) Employee Benefits Expense

(c) Finance Costs

(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

(e) Other Expenses

i. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii. lncome tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive lncome for the Year (Net of Tax) (Vlll)

Nominal Value of Shares (Rs.10)

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares ou

during the year

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share

(a) Current Tax

(b) Mat Credit
(c) lncome Tax For Earlier Year

(d) Deferred Tax

2,584.85
(66s.60)

1278.84l.
77.80

7,979.25 (zot.O4l

L,t7,534.63124,7L7.721

1,17,500.00
1.00

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

1,17,500.00
(0.23)

1

2

3

4

5-50

Corporate lnformation
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements & Presentation

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Use of Estimates

The accompanying Notes are an integral part ofthe Financial

Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 317136E

VIKASH MOHATA

Pa rtner
Membership No. 304011

Place : Kolkata

Date :The 26th day of May,2022

For and on behalf of the Board

/fv.- \--- r: -\
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
(DlN: 00123386)

M;* t"raj"rur-.-
MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343

RANJAN KR. JHALARIA

lndependent Director
(DlN: 05353976)

-6r.-X*,"7'."-",.
SANJANA TIWARI

Chief Financial Officer

j .l,.
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(20,259.70) 1,29,238.19

52,206.32 49,594.98

(432.95) 53.68

(2,838.53) (1,833.21)
995.00 8,642.00

66,063.70 68,449.10

(197.18)

(534.30) (3,252.09)

(4.75) (l.75)

95,194.79 2,50,693. 72

{71.06) (2,626.08)

(52,345.76) 7,485.39

4,218.33 5,315.54

4,401.13 (7,750.85)
(901.13) 4,322.26

4,066.86 3,646.53

16,124.04 754.56

2,673.08 (17,943.72)

73,360.28 2,43,897.35

(14,459.63) (9,097.56)

58,900.65 2,34,799.79

(1,25,915.BS) (1,22.613.85)
1,250.00 750.00

534.30 3,252.09

4.75 1.75

1,24,126.80) (1,18,610.01)

i(A)1---===::-J---..!="-"-=e...J

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

(Gain)/loss on Disposal of Assets

Contribution to Gratuity Fund

Mat Credit Entitlement

Finance Cost

{G.ain)/Losson Mark to Market of Investment

Interest Received

Dividend

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

{lncre,;1se)/DecreaseIn Trade Receivable

(tncrease)/Decrease In Inventories

(1ncrease)/Oecrease ln Other Finaclal Assets

(lncrease)/Decrease In Other Current Assets

!ncrease/(Decrea.se} lo Trade Payable

lncrease/(Decrease} In Employee Benefit Obligations

lncrease/(Decrease) In Other Current Liabilities

lncreose/{Oecrease) In Other Financial Liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Direct Tax (paid) I Refund (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities

CASH F(OWFROM'itly?TINGACTIVITIE???/cliijl;';
Purchase of Pixed Assets including Capital WIP {net of subsldvl

Proceeds from Sale of Assets

Interest Received

Dividend Received

Net Cash used in investing activities

iC. CASH FLOW FRQMFINANCING;jl,g:ivmes:

I
l8.

I

P..-oceeds/{Repayment) of Borrowings

Pr·oceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings

Proceeds/Repayment) Long Term borrowing from Bank & Financial Institution

P,oceeds/(Repayment} of Unsecured Loans

Unsecured Loans (Exteoded)/Recovered
interest & Finance Charges

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Met increase/{Oecrease} in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-tC)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Earmark Balances with Bank

Cash & Bank Balances at the end of the year

42,124.52 (7,037.36)
20,884.50 (1,067.45}

50,000.00 (75,425.91)
31,208.35

(66,063.70) (68,449.10)

''(c) 46,945.33 1,20.771.47)

(18,280.83) (4,581.69)
21,518.62 18,944.20

3,237.79 14,362.51

7,156.11 7,156.11

10,393.90 21,518.62

£,:tr-"' T....-.­

SANJANA TIWARI

Chief Financial Officer

I< Ji_,.J,._---.:
·-

RAN)AN KR. JHALARIA

Independent Director

(DIN:05353976)

For and on behalf of the Board

?-
T>

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director

(DIN:00123386)

MIRAHALOER

Conlpany Secretary

Membership No.A45343lPlace :

I'
:Date
::JOIN

-vcte : L Ptgures shown in bracket shows cash outflow.
I'
1 2. Previous year's Figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

!,,,..,.?-c--,-????????????????????????????????????????????
(Thisis the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
'

JFor L. K. SO HAN IA & CO.

1Chartered Accovntants

1f:mRegis;ation1°??17136E
1?--__.
!

!?::::?MOHATA

jMembershipNo. 304011

i

A.

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Assets

Contribution to Gratuity Fund

Mat Credit Entitlement
Finance Cost

(Gain)/Loss on Mark to Market of lnvestment

lnterest Received

Dividend

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Trade Receivable

(lncrease)/Decrease ln lnventories
(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Finacial Assets

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Current Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Trade Payable

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Employee Benefit Obligations

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Current Liabilities

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Financial Liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Direct Tax (paid) / Refund (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP (net of subsidy)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets

lnterest Received

Dividend Received

Net Cash used in investing activities

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings

Proceeds/Repayment) Long Term borrowing from Bank & Financial lnstitution

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Unsecured Loans

U nsecured Loans (Extended)/Recovered

lnterest & Finance Charges

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Earmark Balances with Bank

Cash & Bank Balances at the end of the year

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 317136E

/ IL-,\-',-
RANJAN KR. JHALARIA

lndependent Director
(DlN: 053s3976)

E"*f"*Tu.,".*
SANJANATIWARI

Chief Financial Officer

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
(DlN: 00123385)

f^r" \-\orlrr'--
MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343

n

VIKASH MOHATA

Partner

Membership No. 304011

ace : Kolkata

i)ate : The 26th d ol May,2022.

lz0,2s9.7Ol

s2,206.32
(432.ss)

(2,838.s3)

99s.00
66,063.70

(s34.30)
(4.7s1

1,29,238.19

49,594.98
s3.68

(1,833.21)

8,642.00

68,449.L0
(197.L8)

(3,2s2.09)
(1.7s)

(71.06)

1s2,345.76)
4,2t8.33
4,40L.13

(s01.13)

4,066.86
t6,L24.04

2,673.O8

95,194.79 2,50,693.72

(2,626.08)

7,48s.39

5,315.54
(7,7s0.8s)

4,322.26

3,646.53
754.56

(t7,943.72)

73,360.28
(14,4s9.63)

2,43,897.35
(9,097.56)

2,34,799.7958,900.65

(1,22,613.8s)

750.00

3,252.09
1,.75

(1,2s,915.8s)
1.,250.00

534.30
4.75

11,24,726.801B)l (1,18,610.01)

(7,037.36],
(1,067.45)

(7s,42s.9t)
31",208.35

(68,449.10)

42,L24.52
20,884.50

50,000.00

(66,063.70)
(r,20,77t.47\}I 46,945.33

(18,280.83)

21,518.62

(4,s81.59)

78,944.20

14,362.51
7,156.LL

3,237.79
7,156.11

10,393.90 2L,51B.62

1. Figures shown in bracket shows cash outflow.

2. Previous year's Figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

Note
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Balance as at 1st April 2021

Add/(Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2022

1,17,500

1,17,500

b LQl:l}';!r.Eq?-?.;, • ..,iii Amount (Rs. In hundreds)

Other Comprehensive
Income

State Capital Sales Tax
Total

General Retained Remeasurement of

Reserve
Investment Remission

Earnings
Biloglcal Assets

Defined Benefit Plans
Subsidv Reserve

Balance as at 1st April, ZOZO 2,50,000.00 34,310.00 10,716.21 (l,13,924.58) 5,478.44 6,378.08 1,92,958.15

Profit for the Year
- . - 1,17,741.66 -

- 1,17,741.66
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) - - -

- - (278.84) (278.84)
Impact of Tax

- . - - - 71.80 71.80

Total Comprehensive Income

2,50,000.00 34,310.00 10,716.21 3,817.09 5,478.44 6,171.04 3,10,492.78

Balance as at 31st March, 2021

2,50,000.00 34,310.00 10,716.21 3,817.09 5,478.44 6,171.04 3,10,492.78
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Amount (Rs. In hundreds)

Other Comprehensive
Income

Total

General
State Capital Sales Tax

Retained Remeasurement of

Reserve
Investment Remission

Earnings
Bilogical Assets

Defined Benefit Plans
Subsldv Reserve

Balance as at 1st April, 2021 2,50,000.00 34,310.00 10,716.21 3,817.09 5,478.44 6,171.04 3,10,492.78

Profit for the Year
- . - {26,636.97) .

- {26,636.97)
Remeasurement Gain/{Loss) . .

- - . 2,584.85 2,584.85
Impact ofTax

- . . - . {665.60) (665.60)

Total Comprehensive Income
2,50,000.00 34,310.00 10,716.21 (22,819.88) 5.478.44 8,090.29 2,85,775.06

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

2,50,000.00 34,310.00 10,716.21 (22,819.88) 5,478.44 8,090.29 2,85,775.06

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

.X.J1- /....,__:;_

RANJAN KR. JHALARIA

Independent Director

(DIN: 05353976)

For and on behalf of the Board

·,.
s:,

('....... ._

MANO) KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director

(DIN:00123386)
/??;}'.\;<?.1·;\

•. ! ,..'ft:i.O.·
. ',,? ; ,,,_)?/.'::·,,I

As per our Report annexed of even date

For L K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 317136E

?

Place : Kol kata

Date : The 26th day of May, 2022.

UDIN :'.l.2- :,Ot/ 01 I ALH ?/.'.'I- '9 I os

.,VIKASH MOHATA

Partner

Membership No. 304011

:.:,.... ????
MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary
Membership No.A45343

,,

s"'"r·""'7.,__,, ... ,"'?

SANJANA TIWARI

Chief Financial Officer
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : L01l32WB1990PLC048991

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31sr MARCH, 2022

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Norben Tea & Exports Limited ("the Company") is an entity incorporated in India having CJN
No. l01132WB1990PLC048991. The registered address of the company is 158, Hemanta
Basu Sarani, Kolkata - 700 001. Udyam registration number under Ministry of Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises (MSME)is UDYAM-WB·l0-0008831. The principal business of the
company is growing and manufacturing of tea. As per Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the company is not
required to maintain cost records.

2. Basjs of Preparation of Financial Statements and Presentation
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its
functional currency.

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the
following items:

a) Financial Assets - Current Investments in Shares - Valued at book value instead of
market price.

bj Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities -Valued at fair value on Balance Sheet approach.
c) Current Investments are carried in the books at purchase value.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

3.1. Measurement of Fair Values
The company has financial assets: a) Investment in Quoted Shares, b} Loans & Advances,
c) Trade Receivables - at fair value, Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables at fair value.
Impact of fair value changes, if any as on the date of transition, is recognised in the
opening reserves and changes thereafter are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
during the period.

3.2. Cash Flow Statement and Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow Statements are reported using indirect method, where profit before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based
on available information.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk or changes in value.

?';C:';;..":;c,-?
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : 101132W81990ptC048991

ST

L CORPORATE INFORMATION
Norben Tea & Exports Limited ("the company") is an entity incorporated in lndia having clN
No' 101132WB1990P1C048991. The registered address of the company is 15B, Hemanta
Basu sarani, Kolkata -7oo 001. udyam registration number under Ministry of Micro, small
and Medium Enterprises (MsME) is UDYAM-wB-10-0008831. The principal business of the
company is growing and manufacturing of tea. As per Section 14g of the Companies Act,
2013 read with companies (cost records and Audit) Rules, zor4, the company is not
required to maintain cost records.

Basis of Preparation of Financial statements and presentation
The financial statements of the company hr* u"un p*pared in accordance with the
lndian Accounting standards (lnd AS) as per the companies (lndian Accounting standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,,) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

company's financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees, which is also its
functional currency.

The lnd AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the
following items:

a) Financial Assets - current lnvestments in Shares - valued at book value instead of
market price.

b) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities - Valued at fair value on Balance sheet approach.c) current lnvestments are carried in the books at purchase varue.

Measurement of Fair Values
The company has financial assets: a) lnvestment in euoted Shares, b) Loans & Advances,
c) Trade Receivables - at fair value, Financial Liabilities - Trade payables at fair value.
Impact of fair value changes, if any as on the date of transition, is recognised in the
opening reserves and changes thereafter are recognised in the statement of profit & Loss
during the period.

cash Flow statements are reported using indirect method, where profit before
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated based
on available information.

2

3

3.1

3.2.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand
short-term balances, highly liquid investmer
amounts of cash and which are subject to ins

deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
nts that are readily convertible into known
ignificant risk or changes in value.
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : l01132WB1990PLC048991

3.3. Borrowjni:s
Borrowing Cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

The borrowings from bank, body corporates have been utilised for the purpose for which

they have been availed i.e. creation of fixed assets/net working capital means. Borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of qualifying assets are

capitalised as the cost of the respective assets. Other borrowing costs are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred

3.4. Property. PJant & Equipment and Depredation
Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less allowable
net recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, overheads directly
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use.

Depredation on such tangible assets have been provided on straight line method as per
the useful life estimated by the management. The management estimates the useful lives
of the fixed assets as follows:

SERIAL DESCRIPTION OF A??ETS USEFUL LIFE {In Years)
NUMBER

1. Non - Factory Buildings & Bridges 60
2. Machinery*, Electric Installations and 30

Factory Buildinzs

3. Furniture & Fittings", Laboratory & Other 20

Equipment" & Tubewell

4. Motor Vehicles 15
5. Computer* 6
6. Office Equipments 5
6. Bearer Plants" 70

"For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical
evaluation carried out by external valuers, the management believes that the useful lives
as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets.

Hence the useful lives for the assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of the schedule of the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold and leasehold land are not
depreciated.

3.5. lmpajrment ofAss,:ts
The carrying amount of the property, plant & equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are

reviewed at each balance sheet date. If any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised. An

impairment loss is charged to the Depreciation Schedule and Statement of Profit & Loss
in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired.

3.6. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities and Provision for Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities valued on Balance Sheet approach on availability of future
taxable profit against which tax losses and tax benefit carried forward can be used.
Provision for deferred tax recognised on timing differences between the taxable income
and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one

or more subsequent periods enacted as at the reporting date. -<,:0rl•. v?,
·'/ -...,.: <i' \•
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : 101132W81990ptC048991

3.3. Borrowinss
Borrowing Cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
The borrowings from bank, body corporates have been utilised for the purpose for which
they have been availed i.e. creation of fixed assets/net working capital means. Borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised asthe cost of the respectlve assets. other borrowing costs are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred

3.4. Property, Plant & Equinment and Depreciation
Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less allowable
net recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, overheads directly
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation on such tangible assets have been provided on straight line method as per
the useful life estimated by the management. The management estimates the useful lives
of the fixed assets as follows:

SERIAL

NUMBER
DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS USEFUL LIFE (ln Yearsl

1,. Non - Build &B 60
2 Machinery*,

Factory Buildi
Electric lnstallations and 30

3 Furniture & Fittings*, Laboratory & Other
E ut ment* & Tubewell

20

4. Motor Vehicles 15
5 Com r* 6
6 Office E ut ments 5
6 Bearer Plants* 70*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical

evaluation carried out by external valuers, the management believes that the useful lives
as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets.

Hence the useful lives for the assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of the schedule of the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold and Leasehold land are not
depreciated.

3.5. Impairment of Assats
The carrying amount of the property, plant & equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date. lf any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised. An
impairment loss is charged to the Depreciation Schedule and Statement of profit & Loss
in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired.

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities and provision for Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities valued on Balance Sheet approach on availability of future
taxable profit against which tax losses and tax benefit carried forward can be used.
Provision for deferred tax recognised on timing differences between the taxable income
and the accounting income that originate in one period and are ca ble of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods enacted as at the reporting date. .;

3.6.

A/ S,^



63

NORSEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : l01132WB1990PLC048991

3. 7. Inventories
Items of inventories are measured as per "Valuation of Inventories" guidelines issued bythe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Institute of Cost Accountants of India.
The details are as follows:

a) Stock of Raw Materials, Stock of Spares & consumables are valued at Cost on FIFO
(First In First Out) basis (excluding the amount of Cenvat/lTC of
Excise/Custom/Service Tax/GST/State Tax Allowable).

b) Stock of Finished Goods are valued at lower of Cost (excluding the amount of GST/
credit allowable) or net realizable value.

c) There is no deviation in method of valuation of stock as prescribed under section
142A of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The financial statements are presented as per
Accounting Standards under IND AS.

3.8. Financial Assets and Financjal Liabilities
Financial Assets and Liabilities are valued at fair market value. The details are as
below:

1. Investments are valued at book value. Unrealised Loss and their deferred tax
assets/liabilities are not provided in the Statement of Profit & Loss as per Ind AS
method of presentation as the management is of the opinion that the unrealised
loss is not permanent in nature and that the investment is strategic in nature.

2. Trade Payables and Trade Receivables are valued at fair market value.

3.9. Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimates required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

3.10. Revenue Recognitjon
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or
managerial involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Other Income & Expenditure
a) Investment Income on actual transaction are recognized on actual basis.
b) Interest Income are recognized on accrual basis.
c) Other Expenses (other than Borrowing Cost and Employee benefit expenses, which

are shown separately) are recognized on accrual basis.

;)t1???1\,
: ?"'-".?'?,:/'. ) "':,
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED
CIN : 101132W81990ptC048991

3.7.

3.8

3.9.

3.10.

Inventories
Items of inventories are measured as per "Valuation of lnventories,' guidelines issued bythe lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia and lnstitute of cost Accountants of lndia.
The details are as follows:
a) Stock of Raw Materials, stock of Spares & consumables are valued at cost on FlFo(First ln First out) basis (excruding the amount of cenvat/rrc of

Excise/Custom/Service Tax/GST/State Tax Allowa ble).
b) stock of Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost (excluding the amount of GST/

credit allowable) or net realizable value.
c) There is no deviation in method of valuation of stock as prescribed under section

1'42A of the lncome Tax Act, 1961. The financial statements are presented as per
Accounting Standards under IND AS.

Financial Assets and Liabilities are valued at fair market value. The details are as
below:
1' lnvestments are valued at book value. Unrealised Loss and their deferred tax

assets/liabilities are not provided in the statement of profit & Loss as per lnd AS
method of presentation as the management is of the opinion that the unrealised
loss is not permanent in nature and that the investment is strategic in nature.2. Trade payabres and Trade Receivabres are varued at fair market varue.

Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obrigation (regar orconstructive) as a result of a past event. lt is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimates required to settle the obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed
at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards ofownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control ormanagerial involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from operations is measured at the fair value of the consideration received orreceivable, taking into account defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Other lncome & Expenditure
a) lnvestment rncome on actualtransaction are recognized on actuar basis.b) lnterest lncome are recognized on accrual basis.

Other Expenses (other than Borrowing Cost and Emp
are shown separately) are recognized on accrual basis.

loyee benefit expenses, which
c)

O:J



NORDEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : l01132WB1990PLC048991

3.11. finance Cost
Finance Cost includes interest, amortization and other ancillary cost incurred in regard to
borrowings. All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit & loss for the
period for which they are incurred.

3.12. Employee Benefit Cost
Short Term Employee Benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during
the period when the employees render the services

Long Term Employee Benefits

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution
plans and the charges as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution
required to be made. The Company makes regular contribution to Recognised Provident
Fund which are fully funded and administered by the Central Government.

3.13. GST Input Credit;
Goods and Services Tax payment elements on purchase/reverse charge/services
received, whichever applied, covered and allowable as IGST/SGST/CGST credit are
accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service is received and
accounted.

3.14. Taxes on Income
The provision for current income tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for
the year as determined in accordance with the current provisions of Income Tax Act,
1961. Provision for deferred tax assets/liabilities is charged to Statement of Profit and
loss, measured on differences of Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets/liabilities from one
Balance Sheet date to the next Balance Sheet date.

The West Bengal Government waived Agricultural Income tax on tea gardens for the
financial year 2021-2022

3.15. Earnjnes Per Share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(loss) after Tax
including Other Comprehensive Income, i.e. Total Comprehensive Income, by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(Loss) after tax including other
comprehensive income

,
i.e. Total Comprehensive Income as adjusted for dividend,

interest and other charges to expense or income relating to dilutive potential equity
shares, by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The Company has not
issued any shares during the year and no extraordinary expenses incurred, hence the
basic and diluted earnings per shares are same.

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED
CIN : 101132W81990p1C048991

3.11. Finance Cost
Finance Cost includes interest, amortization and other ancillary cost incurred in regard to
borrowings. All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of profit & Loss for the
period for which they are incurred.

3.L2. Employee Benefit Cost
Short Term Emplolree Benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during
the period when the employees render the services

Long Term Emoloyee Benefits

The company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution
plans and the charges as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution
required to be made. The company makes regular contribution to Recognised provident
Fund which are fully funded and administered by the central Government.

3.13. GST Input Credit:
Goods and services Tax payment elements on purchase/reverse charge/services
received, whichever applied, covered and allowable as lGsr/sGST/cGST credit are
accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service is received and
accounted.

3.L4. Taxes on Income
The provision for current income tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for
the year as determined in accordance with the current provisions of lncome Tax Act,
1961' Provision for deferred tax assets/liabilities is charged to statement of profit and
Loss, measured on differences of Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities from one
Balance Sheet date to the next Balance Sheet date.

3.15.

The West Bengal Government waived Agricultural lncome tax on tea gardens for the
fina ncia I y ear 2O2L-2022

Earnings Per Share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the Net profit/(Loss) after Tax
including other comprehensive rncome, i.e. Total comprehensive rncome, by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earningsper share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(Loss) after tax including other
comprehensive income , i.e. Total comprehensive lncome as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income relating to dilutive potential equity
shares, by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The company has not
issued any shares during the year and no extraordinary expenses incurred, hence the
basic and diluted earnings per shares are same.
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : L01132WB1990PLC048991

3.16. Segment Reportini:
The company has only one primary business segment, i.e. manufacturing of tea.

Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.

4. Use of Estimates and (udi:ments

In preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements, the management has made
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : [01132WB1990ptC048991

3.L6. SegmentRenorting
The company has only one primary business segment, i.e. manufacturing of tea.

Operatins Cvcle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non_current.

4. Use of Estimates and Iudgments

ln preparation of these lnd AS Financial Statements, the management has made
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.
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CIN No. L01132WB1990PLC04899l
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Amount: lRS.. 1n nundreds),,;, ,,
.

Year Ended 31st March 2022

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation
Particulars Net Carrying Net Carrying

Asat
Additions Disposals

Asat As at As:at Amount As on Amount As on
31st March 2021 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

For the Year Deduction$
31st March 2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

capital Work in Progress

. 18,649.00 18,649.00 .
-

.
. 18,649.00 .Total

. 18,649.00 - 18,649.00 . .
.

- 18,649.00 .Previous Vear
-

.
.

.
. .

.
.

20,18,807.69

Amount (Rs. in hundreds)

7,08,054.47468.3549,594.986,58,927.8427,26,862.161,272.031,22,613.8526,05,520.34Previous Year

.
.

Year Ended 31st March 2022

Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Net Carry;ng
As at Asat As at Asat Amount As on Amount As on

31st March 2021
Additions Disposals

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
FOf' the Year Deductions

31st March 2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Land Freehold 3,70,962.67 .

. 3, 70,962.67
. .

. 3,70,962.67 3,70,962.57Buildings 9,17,103.17 733.11 9,17,836.28 3, 18,090.66 19,152.31 . 3,37,242.97 5,80,593.31 5,99,012.51Plant & Equipments 6,34,239.31 12,279.19 12,430.06 6,34,088.45 3,18,060.82 18,808.00 11,613.01 3,25,255.81 3,08,832.63 3,16,178.49Furniture and Fixtures 2,161.23 404.00 . 2,565.23 1,675.47 27.92 . 1,703.38 861.85 485.76Motor Vehicles 31,342.23 .
. 31,342.23 17,639.98 1,384.76 . 19,024.74 12,317.49 13,702.25Office Equipments 8,156.77 .

- 8,156.77 4,543.51 594.09 . 5,137.60 3,019.16 3,613.26Bearer Plants 7,62,896.78 93,850.55 . 8,56,747.33 48,044.04 12,239.25 . 60,283.28 7,96,464.05 7,14,852.74Total 27,26,862.16 1,07,266.85 12,430.06 28,21,698.95 7,08,054.47 52,206.32 11,613.01 7,48,647.78 20,73,051.17 20,18,807 .69Previous Year 26,05,520.34 1,22,613.85

S PROPERTY,PLANT ANDEQUIPMENT

sn

©.
\

? <'] :·

bb

18,649.0018,649.00

Particulars ILess than 1 years jl ? 2 Years 12 · 3 Years IMore than 3years I Total

Project temporarily
suspended

Project in Proiress

Notes:

S.1 For Propery, Plant and Equipment exisiting as on 1st Aprii 2016, i.e. the date of transition to Ind AS for the company, the company has taken the fair value of certain parcels of fand and Ind AS cost for all theother assets as deemed cost as per the option available under para 07Mof Ind AS 101 "First Time Adoption".
5.2 Addittion to Plant & Machinery also include finance costs capitalized on the qualifying assets as required by Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs" amoonting to Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. Ntl)
S.3 In view of transitional provision of amended Accounting Standard AS-10 "Property Plant & Equipment" effecttve from 1st April 2016, Cost of land amounting to Rs.3,00,00,000/- has been transferred from BearerPlants on 01.04.2016.

S.4 Capital Work In pro ress Ageing Schedule Amount (Rs. In hundreds)
Amount in Capital Work in progress _for?

__

period 31st March 2022
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?o? to Flna?.:11$?tements as Orta.ndfor the year ended 31st Matth., 2.022

6 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Refer·q;:;,

Note NJ;·"­
·0,

;-,,·

Non Current

As'at As at

31st Mai.ch202·2 31st March 2021

,
, -_Amount (Rs."iflhundreds)

Current

Asat As at

31st March 2022 31st March 202.1

Amount (Rs. In hundreds)

Trade Receivables

Total Trade Receivables

Break Up of Security Details

Unsecured, considered good

Total 'trade Receivables

Total

3,107.55 3,397.95 28,179.56 27,818.10

3,107.55 3,397.95 28,179.56 27,818.10

3,107.SS 3,397.95 28,179.56 27,818.10

3,107.55 3,397.95 28,179.56 27,818.10

3,107.SS 3,397.95 28,179.56 27,818.10

6.1 Trc1de receivables are non-interest bearing.

6.2 No trade or other receivables are due from directors. or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectjvely in which any director Is a partner, a director or a member.

6.3 The ageinll analv:sis of the Trade Receivable

Particulars Outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 f31st March, 2021) from the due date

Less than 6 6 months. 1 Year 1-2Years 2 - 3 Years More than 3 Years

months

{;) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 28,179.56 - -
- 3,107.,5

(27 818,10 (· I- ,_ (3,107.55

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered -

-

doubtfu[

{-) ,. ,. (-1 ,.

(iv} Disputed Trade receivables-considered good
-

l·l ,. ,_ {-) ,.

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered -
-

-

doubtful

f.} /. H f.) H

6.4 There are no Unbilled dues which are required to be dis.closed separately

7 LOANS & AOVANCfS

Loans & Advances to Others

Unsecured, considered good

Total Loans & Advances

7.1

'"'f'.§(:Asat
<31stMarch2022

Asat

/31st March 2021

eurrent

As at

31st March 2022

1,250.00

1,250.00

Asat

31st March 2021:;

1,250.00

izsooo

7.1 No Loans are due from directors or other officers of the comp;.u,y either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loon are due from firms or private

companies respectlvefv in which any director ls a partner, a director or a member.

8 OTHERS FINANOALASSETS

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits

Other non-current investmenl'S

Interest Receivable on Loan and Fixed Deposits

Other Loans and Advances

Advances to others

Advance to tmployees

1,290.72

10,000.00

6,212.46

17,503.18

Asat

31st March 1021

1,290,72

10
..
000.00

9,204.21

20,494.93

67

CIJrrent

Asat

31st March 2022

17,194.10

1,041.75

5.00

18,240.85

Asat

31st March 2021

16,740.68

416.75

2,310.00

19,467.43

6

Total Trade Receivables 3,107.55 3,397.95 28,t79.56

6.1 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

6.2 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

6.3 The ana of the Trade Receivable

6.4 There are no Unbilled dues which are required to be disclosed separately

7 LOANS

Loans & Advances to Others

U nsecured, considered good
7.t

Trade Receivables

Total Trade Receivables

6.1 & 6.2 3,107.55 3,397.95 28,L79.56 27,818.10

3,107.55 3,397.9s 28,779.56 27.818.10

Break Up of Security Details

Unsecured, considered good 3,107.55 3,397.9s 28,779.56 27,8L8.70

Total 3,107.55 3,397.95 28,t79.56 27,878.tO

27 .818.10

1,250.00 1,250.00

Total Loans & Advances 1,250.00 1,250.00

No Loans are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are due from flrms or private

companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Security Deposits

U nsecured, considered good

Security Deposits 1.,290.72 L,290.72

Other non-current investments

lnterest Receivable on Loan and Fixed Deposits 17,194.10 76,740.68

7.r

8

Other Loans and Advances

Advances to others

Advance to Employees

10,000.00

6,2t2.46

10,000.00

9,204.2L

1,041.75

5.00

4L6.75

2,310.00

4

Particula rs Outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 (31st March. 2021) from the due date

Less than 6

months

6months-1Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years More than 3 Years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good 28,L79.56 3,107.55

(27,818.10) (-) (-) (-) (3,107.5s)

(i) U ndlsputed Trade receivables-considered

doubtful
(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered good

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-considered

do u btfu I

C) (-) (-) (-) (-)

17,503.18

67

20,494.93 18,240.85 L9.467.43
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31St March zoz;

Rs. in hundreds

A>•t

31st March 2022

Rs. in hundreds.

N0RB£N TEA a EXPORTS LIMITED

ON No. L01132WB1990PLC048991
.

fin•1>:i•I S???entsas on and fort?,:re??ended 31st March; 202"'2'---------------­

,, ''.?Y}C,·,>??
,;J':'.'.::·f14{J':;:9

Advance TaK & TDS

Less: Provision Ior Taxaricn

Mat Oedlt Entitlement

79,132.11

(36,384.68)

9,637.00

64,570.95

135,389.68)

8,642.00

52,384.43 37,823.27

10 DEFERRED TAX ASSfTS (NET)

Asat

31st Mar<::h 2022

Rs. In hundreds

A? at

31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds

Oeferred TOH(Uabllltie5,

Arising on account of:

Propertv, Plant & Equipment

less: Deferred Tax Assets

Arising on account of:

Section 438 and other Items

Brought Forward Unabsorbed tosses

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

1,27,419.23 1,21,0S1.23

1,27,419,23 1,21,051.23

10,1 12,718.74 13,38H4

1,88,992.98 1,88,992.98

Z,01,711.72 2,02,377.32

74,292.49 81,326.09

10.1 The recognition of deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation/business losses has been restricted to the extent of deferred tax liability on account of timing
difference in respect of depreciation, the reversal of which is virtually tertian.

11 lNV£NTORIES

\As valued and certified by the Management)
Finished Goods

Stores and Spares etc.

Fair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves}

Asat Asat

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds Rs. in hundreds

76,600.55 40,042.00

23,792.31 8,005.10

1.00,392.86 48,047.10

Asat Asat

Refer 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Note No. Rs;ln t'iundreds Rs. in hundreds

12.1 5,478.44 5,478.44

5,478.44 5,478.44

12.1 Unharvested tea leaves on bushes as on 31st March 2022 was 24164 kgs (31.03.2021- 24187 kgs)

13 CURRENTINVESTMENTS
. "'•"''?-?f?-??i?,,t?v?:??Ju_e__,,--??'?-;:?::s?<?A?,-.-,?3-1st_M_a_tc?h-2_0_22__ ---------A-,-,-,-3-1_st_M_a?rc-h?2-0_2_1----?

QRi'Y:: RS:.:'1nhundreds Qnty Rs- in hundreds11

13.1 INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

Investments in Quoted Shares

Ban'.>isons Tea Industries 10 100 4.25

Ohunseri Investments Ltd 10 so 135.90

Dhunseri Ventures Limited
100 100

#Formerly Ohunseri Petrochem & Tea Ltd
98.60

Dhunserl Tea & Industries 10 20 51.43

Longview Tea Company 10 100 18.18

T&l Global 10 100 96.35

TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENTS 404.71

Aggregate Book Value of the Quoted Investment 404.71

Aggregate- Market Value of tile Quoted lnvestment 747.25

100 4.25

so 135.90

100 98.60

20 51.43

200 18.18

100 96.35

4-04.71

4-04.71

404.71

9

Advance Tax & TDS

Less: Provision for Taxation

Mat Credit Entitlement

79,L32.LL

{36,384.68)
9,637.00

64,570.95
(3s,389.68)

8,642.00

52,384.43 37,823.27

10 DEFE

Deferred Tax tiabilities
Arising on account of :

Property, PIant & Equipment

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Arising on account of :

Section 438 and other ltems
Brought Forward Unabsorbed Losses

L,27,4L9.23 1,27,O5L.23

L,27,4L9.23 7,27,051.23

10.1 t2,7L8.74
1,88,992.98

13,384.34
1,88,992.98

2,O7,7LL.72 2,02,377.32

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 74,292'.49 81,326.09

10.1 The recognition of deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation/business losses has been restricted to the extent of deferred tax liability on account of tlming

difference in respect of depreciation, the reversal of which is virtually certian.

11

(As valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods

Stores and Spares etc.

76,600.55
23,792.3L

40,042.00
8,00s.10

1,00,392.86 48,047.70

hund

12 BtoLoG

Fair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves)

12.L U nha rvested tea leaves on bushes as on 3 1st March 2022 was 24764 kgs (31.03.2021 - 24t87 kgsl

t2.7 5,478.44 5,478.44

s,478.44 5,478.44

13

13.1 INVESTMENT AT FAIR VATUE THROUGH PROFIT

oR LOSS

lnvestments in Quoted Shares

Bansisons Tea lndustries
Dhunseri lnvestments Ltd

Dhunseri Ventures Limited

#Formerly Dhunseri Petrochem & Tea Ltd

Dhunseri Tea & lndustries
Longview Tea Company
T&l Global

TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Aggregate Book Value of the quoted lnvestment
Aggregate Market Value of the quoted lnvestment

100

50

100

20

200

100

100

50

100

20

200
100

10

10

100

10

10

10

4.75

135.90

98.60

51.43

18.18

96.35

4.25

135.90

98.60

57.43

18.18

96.3s

404.71 404.77

404.7L

747.25

404.7L

404.71

.i
t., t^ .'.



.'fNOR8E?.?,c!f<EXPORTS LIMITED

Jt, CIN.No.L01µ?1NB1990PLC048991
Notes to Flnanclll :s???m,en.t?.a? on and for the year ended .31st March? 202"2'--------------------"-

14 CASH AND CASH EQUVALENTS

Balances With Banl<s:

In Current Account

Cash in Hand

15 BANK BALANCES (OTHERTHAN NOJ£:.14)

Fixed Deposit with Bank

Asat As at

31$l March 2022: 31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds Rs. in hundreds

118.11 2,721.37

3,119.68 11,641.14

3,237.79 14,362.51

Asat Asat

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

R5. in hundreds Rs. in hundreds

7,156.11 7,156.11

7,156.11 7.156.11

15.l All the above fixed deposits has been lien to State Bank of India as collateral security against loan repayment on demand and Bank Guarantee.

16 OTHER CURRENT ASSE'iS

Advances other than Capital Advances

BJ lance with Govt Authoritie5

Prepaid Expenses
Other Receivables

Total Other Assets

As at

31st March 2022

Rs. in hundreds

4,711.10

1,518.50
34.27

6,263.87

As at

31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds

1,434.81

9,230.19

10,665.00

17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

17.1 Authorlsed Share capital

Equity Share Capital of Rs 10/-each

17.2 Issued Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each

17,3 Subscribed and Paid-up Share C,pltil

Ordit13ry Shares of Rs.IO/· each fully paid-up

Refer ? at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Note No. No. of $hares Amount No. of Shares Amount

No. in hundreds Rs. in hundreds No; in hundreds Rs. in hundreds

1,20,000.00 12,00,000.00 1,20,000.00 12,00,000.00

1,20,000.00 12,00,000,00 1,20,000.00 12,00,000.00

1,17,SOO.OO 11,75,000.00 1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00

1,17,500.00 11,75,000,00 1,17,500.00 11.75.000.00

1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00 1,17,SOO.OO 11,75,000.00

1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00 1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00

17.4 geconcihanon of the number of ,hares at the beginning and at the end of the year

Opening Number of Shares as on 01/04/2.021

Add: Change during the year

Closing as on 31/3/2022

Nc. ln hundreds

1,17,500.00

1,17,500.00

There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

17.5 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share and each holder of Ordinary shares is entlUed to one vote per share. The

Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors (except interim dividend} is subject to the approval of the

shareholders ln the Annual General Meetings, The claim of Ordinary Shareholders on earnings and on assets in the event of liquidanon, follows all others, in

orooortion to their shareholding.

17.6 Shareholding Pattern wlth respect of Holdlng or Ultim.ite Holding Company

The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ultimate HoldjngCompany.

L4

Baiances With Banks

in Current Account

Cash in Hand

118.11

3,119.68

2,721.37

7L,647.L4

3,237.79 L4,362.5L

15

Fixed Deposit with Bank 7,L56,L1 7,156.tL

?,L56.L1 ?,L56.n

15.1 All the above fixed deposits has been lien to State Bank of lndia as collateral security against loan repayment on demand and Bank Guarantee.

r6

Advances other than Capital Advances

Balance with Govt Authorities 4,7LL.Lo
1,518.50

34.27

6,263.87 10,665.00

Prepaid Expenses

Other Receivables

Total Other Assets

1,434.81

9,230.19

17

L7.r Authorised Share Capital

Equity Share Capital of Rs 1O/-each

17.2 lssued Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each

1,20,000.00 12,00,000.00 1,20,000.00 12,00,000.00

1,20.000.00 12,00,000.00 1.20.000.00 12.00,000.00

1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00 1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00

1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00 1.17.500.00 11,75,000.00

17.3 Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00 1,17,500.00 11,75,000.00

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up 1.17,500.00 11,75,000.00 17,.500.00 11.75.000.00

17 .4 Reconciliation of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

No. in hundreds

Opening Number of Shares as on 0L/041202L
Add: Change during the year

Closing as on371312022

1,17,500.00

1,17,500.00

There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

17.s Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share and each holder of Ordinary shares is entitled to one vote per share. The

Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors (except interim dividend) is subject to the approval of the

shareholders in the Annual General Meetings. The claim of Ordinary Shareholders on earnings and on assets in the event of liquidation, follows all others, in

orooortion to their shareholdins.

L7.6 Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ultimate Holding Company.

-i
i!
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N()RBENTEA & ElCPOtmLIMITED

Citi'No.l01132'/i??gg'OPLC048991.·•<
..

· _:>.,.
'Notes. to Fhtantj?i'St?tementsas on alld f?rthe year ended31St Marc?., 2022

17, 7 Details of Equity Shareholders holding more th•n 5% shares in the COm,::,e.,"'-'-------=-:-c-=---------,---c,-,---:--:=------
As at 31st Marth 2022 As at 31st March 2021

Otdinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid

Mangalarn Products Pvt. Ltd.

Tongani Tea Co. Limited

No. of Shares % He>Kiing No. of Shares % Holding

in hundreds in hundreds

12,059.50 10.26 12,059.50 10.26

22,606.50 19.24 22.606.50 19.24

17.8

No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

17 .9 The Company has not aUotted any equity shares against consideration other tnan cash nor has allotted any shares as fully pald up by way of bonus shares nor has

bought back any shares durfr1g the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared,

1 J .10 No securities convertlble into Equlty/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.

11.11 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company duriog the year.

Shares held bv promoters at the end of the year

As at 31st March. 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Promoter's Name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during the No. of Shares in % of total shares

in huodreds vear hundreds

Manoi Kumar Daea 1205.01 1.03 -
1205.01 1.03

Shanti Devi Daza 6700.56 5.70 6700.56 5.70

Manoi Kumar D<H,Ul{HUF) 459.46 0.39 459.46 0.39

Dlvtsha caea 5873.43 5.00 5873.43 5.00

Jvoti Devi OaRa 5n3 4.91 5773 4.91

Patlavi DaRa 4884.16 4.16 4884.16 4.16

Mannalarn Products Pvt.Ltd. 120595 10.26 12059.5 10.26

Ttonaanl Tea Companv ltd. 22606.5 19.24 . 22606.5 19.24

Anlum Investments Pvt. Ltd. 885.97 0.75 . 685.97 0.75

17 .12 Disclosure of shareholdings by Promoters

Asat As at

18 OYHER EQUITY 31st Mif'(:h 2022 31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds Rs. in hundreds

General Reserve 2,5-0,000.00 2,50,000.00

Retained Earnings (9,251.15} 15.466.57

Other Reserves 45,026.21 45,026.21

2,BS,775.06 3,10.492.78

1&.1 General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00

Balance at the end of the year 2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00

18.2 Retained Earning$

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

15,466.57

(24,717.72)

(1,02.06S.06}
1.17,534.62

Balance at the end of the year (9,251.15) 1S,466.S7

18.3 Other Reserves

State Capital Investment Subsidy
Balance at the end of the year 34,310.00 34.310.00

Sales Ta>t Remis$1on Reserve

eaaoce at the end of the year 10,716.21 10,716.21

Total Other Reserve 45,026.21 45.026.21

Total Reserve & Surplus 2,85,775.06 3,10,492.78

11.7 Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid

Mangaiam Products Pvt. Ltd.

Tongani Tea Co. Limited

17.8

17.9

17"10

As at 31st March 2022

No. ofShares % Holding

in hundreds

As at 31st March 2021

No. ofShares % Holding

in hundreds

12,059.50
22,606.50

LO.26

L9.24

12,059.50
22,606.50

2,50,000.00
(9,2s1.1s)

45,026.2L

70.26

L9.24

2,50,000.00
L5,466.57

45,026.27

No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance sheet date'

The Company has not allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has allotted any shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares nor has

hought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the company during the year.

1.7.11 NocallsareunpaidbyanyDirectororOfficeroftheCompanyduringtheyear

17.12 Disclosure of shareholdings bY Promoters

Shares held oters at the end of the

18 OTHER EQUITY

General Reserve

Retalned Earnings

Other Reserves

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other Reserves

State Capital lnvestment Subsidy

Balance at the end of the year

Sales Tax Remission Reserve

Balance at the end of the year

Total Other Reserve

Total Reserve & Surplus

2,85,775.06 3,70,492.78

18.1

18.2

18.3

2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00

2,s0,000.00 2,50,000.00

L5,466.57

.24,7L7.72l-

(1,02,068.06)

7,t7,534.62

(9,251.1s) L5,466.57

34,310.00 34,310.00

L0,7L6.2L t0,7L6.2L

45,026.2L 45,026.27

Promoter's Name

As at 3Xst March,2022 As at 31st March, 2021

No. of Shares

in hundreds

% of total shares % Change during the
year

No. of Shares

hu ndreds

tn % of total shares

Manoj Kumar Daga 1205.01 1.03 1205.01 1.03

Shanti Devi Daga 6700.56 5.70 6700.s6 5.70

Manoi Kumar Daga (HUF) 459.46 0.39 459.46 0.39

Divisha Daga 5873.43 5.00 5873.43 5.00

Jvoti Devi Dasa 5773 4.97 5773 4.9L

Pallavi Daga 4884.L6 4.16 4884.16 4.76

Mangalam Products Pvt.Ltd 12059.5 to.26 12059.5 70.26

Ttongani Tea Company Ltd. 22606.5 L9.24 22606.5 79.24

Anium lnvestments Pvt. Ltd 885.97 0.75 885.97 o.75

,"/ (. r

2,85,775.06 3,70,492.78



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS UM11£D
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NOtes to Fin?ncial·statemen?as,.<>n,nd for the'yearended 31st March, 2022
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Non Current Current

19 BORROWINGS Refer .::·_::;;? A$ at

liot• No.
·

"•31't Mat<h 202i,

:,':zR,:.in hUndredS

Asat

31st March 2921
Rs. In hvndr-eds

AHt

31st Marcil 2022

Rs. In hundreds

Asat

31St March 2021

Rs. in hundreds

21,453.03 568.53 S68.S3 1,731.43

21,453.03 568.53 S68.S3 l,731A3

(S68.S3) (1.731,43)

21,453.03 568.53

21,453.03 568.53 S68.S3 1,731.43
Rupee Loans

(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets

acquired)

From Others:

19.1 'rerm Loans

From Bank:

Rupee Loans

{Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets ZICquired)

'total

Amount disclosed under the head "Other Financial liability"

21,453.03

21,453.03

568.53

S68.53

568.S3

(S68.S3)

1,731.43

jl,731.43)

19.2 Unsecured Loan

From Body Corporate. Related Part','

From Body Corporate· Other

lS,000,00

4,15,000,00

60,000.00

3,65,000.00

450,000.00 4,25,000.00

19.3 Unsecured Advances

Other Advances 25,000.00

25,000.00

19.tl Break Up of Security Details

Secured

Unsecured

21,453.03

4,75,000.00

568.53

4.25,000.00

568.S3 1,731.43

rota I 4,25,568.53 568.53 1,731.43

19.S Rate of Interest and Re•Payment Schedule for term Loan from State Bank of lndla:

Term Loan has to be ?voliled within a period of 6 month from the date of sanction (Sanction Amount is Rs. 35 Lacs). Effective interest rate of term loan taken is 8.35

% p.a. Moratorium period of 6 Months and then in 84 monthly installments of Rs. 41,667/· each with the first installment commendng on August 2022 and the last

installment falting due on July 2029. Term loan availed as on 31.03.2022 from State Sank of India Is Rs.. 21,45,303/·

20 PROVISIONS

Non:eurrent

Asat

3Jst March 2021

RtJfrhundreds

Cur,ent

AHi

31st M<frch 2022
...

,U; in hundreds

.Asat
31st March 2021

Rs. In hundreds

Provision for Emolovee Beneflts 52,727,12 49,888.59

Total 52,727.12 49,888.59

21 SHORT TERM SORRO'o/lNGS

Loans Repayable on Demand

- Working Capital Loan from Banks

- Covid-19 Emergency Credit Line

- Stand By Line- of Credit

- working Capital Loan from Banks (Garden)

21.1 'rhe above amount includes

secured Borrowings.

Asat As at

31st Marr;:h 2022 31st March 2021

Rs. In hundre'ds Rs. m hundreds

2,26,982.01 2,27,411.80

3,334.40

36,000.00

9,888.71

2,72,870.72 2,30.746.20

2,72,870.72 2,30,746.20

2,72,870.72 2,30,746.20

21.2 Terms and conditions of C1.1rre11tBorrowings

The Current Borrowings. from State Bank of India are secured primarily by way of hypothecation of stocks of tea crops, green leaves, stores & spares, book debts,

other current assets, plant & mac:hinecy and other fbed assets, equitable mortgage of all piece and parcel of land measuring approx 126 acres land and building

there on under Berubari G.P.Situated at Dist Jalpaiguri,and further secured by personal guarantee of Promoter Director Le. Sri Manoj Kumar Daga.

Zl.3 The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by Director ts Rs, 2,72,870.72 (Previous Year Rs. 2,30,746.00) (rupees in hundreds) 1_,;(:}?fq]?!J
21.4 The present applicable rate of Interest per annum for Gash Credit lean from State Bank of tndia is 8.35 %

• 1· ? /? '"

21.5 The present applicable rate of interest per annum for Stand by line of Credit l'::1t"mState Bank of India is 9.35 %
. iJi:,'.r\,

19 BO

19.1 Term Loans

From Bank:

Rupee Loans
(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets acquired)

From Others:

Rupee Loans

(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets

acqur red )

Total
Amount disclosed under the head "Other Financial Liability"

19.2 Unsecured Loan

From Body Corporate - Related Party

From Body Corporate - Other

19.3 UnsecuredAdvances
Other Advances

19.4 Break Up of Security Details

Secu red

U nsecu red

Loans Repayable on Demand
- Working Capital Loan from Banks

- Covid 19 Emergency Credit Line

- Stand By Line of Credit
- Working Capital Loan from Banks (Garden)

2L,45?.O3 568.53 568.53 7,731.43

21,453.03 568.s3 568.53
(s68.s3)

t,73L.43
n.737.431

2t,453.O3 568.53

21,453.03 568.53 568.s3 L,73L.43

21,453.03 568.s3 568.53
{s68.s3)

7,73L.43
{1.,731.43

21,453.03 s68.s3

35,000.00
4,15,000.00

60,000.00

3,65,000.00

4,50,000.00 4,25,000.00

25,000.00

25,000.00

568.s3
4,2s,000.00

Total 4,96,453.03 4.25.568.53 568.s3 7,73L.43

19.5 Rate of lnterest and Re-Payment Schedule for term Loan from State Bank of lndia:

Term Loan has to be availed within a period of 6 month from the date of sanction (sanction Amount is Rs. 35 Lacs). Effective interest rate of term loan taken is 8.35

% p.a. Moratorium period of 5 Months and then in 84 monthly installments of Rs. 4t,6671- each with the first installment commencing on August 2022 and the last

installment falling due on July 2029.Ferm loan availed as on 31.03.2022 from State Bank of lndia is Rs. 21,45,303/-

20

Provision for Employee Benefits 52,727.t2 49,888.59

Total 52,727.L2 49.888.s9

ZT SHORT

21,453.03
4,75,000.00

568.53 1,73L.43

2,26,982.OL

36,000.00
9,888.71

2,27,4L7.80
3,334.40

2,72,870.72 2,30,746.20

21.r The aboveamountincludes
Secured Borrowings 2,72.,87O.72 2,30,746.20

2,72,870.72 2,30,746.20

21.2 Terms and conditions of Current Borrowings

The Current Borrowings from State Bank of lndia are secured primarily by way of hypothecation of stocks of tea crops, Sreen leaves, stores & spares, book debts,

other current assets, plant & machinery and other fixed assets, equitable mortgage of all piece and parcel of land measuring approx 126 acres land and building

there on under Berubari G.P.Situated at Dist Jalpaiguri,and further secured by persona I guarantee of Promoter Director i.e. Sri Manoj Kumar Daga.

The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by Director is Rs.2,72,870.72 (Previous Year Rs. 2,30,746.00) (rupees in hundreds)

The present applicable rate of interest per annum for Cash Credit loan from State Bank of lndia is 8.35 % .

The present applicable rate of interest per annum for Stand by line of Credit loan from State Bank of lndia is 9'35 % .

*71
ta
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27.4

21.5



Rs. in hundreds

Current

Rs. in hundreds

A.sat Asat

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Rsfin hundreds

,

AS'cat

31st March 2021

Rs.. ill hUndteds
31st Marc:h.2Qll···

NORBEN TEA &??RTS UMrrED
CIN Noit01132WBl990PlC!)<ll!99?

Notes to Fin11Jd?JStatements al on anc(!P!::theye..,,-:;nc;1,d11:rtiMarch,2022
· ;;· · ·· · ·

Non C1.1t1'ent:
·'"""·Reier

,,>!··,·
: :,f,,Note No.

TRADE PAYABLES22

Dues to Micro and SmaU Enterprises
Dues to Creditors other than Micro & SmaU Enterprises

For Goods&. Services 48,622.02 49,523.15

48,622.02 49,523.15

2.2.1 Disclosure as required under the Micro,. Small and Medil..im Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per nouticatrcn number GSR 679

\E) dated 4th September, 2015. The company has compiled this information based on Intimation received from the suppliers of their status as Micro or Small

Enterprises and/or its registrattcn with appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 ("MSMEO Act").

I Asac As at

SI, No.
Particulars 31st March Z02? 31st March 2021

' The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms

of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

i
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the

NIL NIL

' amount of the payment made to the supplier

I
beyond the appointed day during each accounting

, .. ear.

,, The amount of interest due and payable for the

period of delay ln making payment but without

adding the interest specified under the Micro, NIL Nil

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006

. lii The amount of interest accrued and remaining

unpaid cit the end of each accounting year NIL Nil

" The amount of further interest remaining due and

payable even in the succeeding years, until such

'
date when the interest dues above ate actually

;
paid to the smaH enterprise, for the purpose of

Nil Nil
dtsaucwance of a deductible expenditure under

'
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

22.2 The agein an.al Si$ of the Trade Pa able

Particulars

(;)MSME

(ii) Others

Lessthan 1

20,873.66 5,424.46 22,118.01 205.89

Total

48,622.02

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME

(iv) Disputed dues -Others

Non Current Current

23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Asat

31:s.t March 2022

A$. in hundreds

3JtM!??o21
Rs. in hundreds

Asat

31st March 2022

gs. kl hundreds

As at

31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds

Current Maturity of Long term borrowings
Interest Accrued on Borrowings
Other Payables

568.53

11,702.29

6,047.48

1,731.43

9,824.09

4,089.70 ·

18,318.30 15.645.22

23.1 There are- no amounts due for payment to the Investor €du.cation and Protection Fund at the year end.

24 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS Asat

31st March 2022

Rs. in hundreds

·

Asat

31st March 2021 /iii,

Rs. in hundreds"

Salaries & wages Payable

Gratuity Payable:

19,003.96 13,042.13

1,894.97

19,003.96 14,937.10

Non Current Current

As11t As at

...
,iiffil!c -,

.. ,.:ii,'6<'.CgJL,tM,rch 2022
.

31st M?r<? 20ll

25 OTHfR LIABILITIES

Rs. In hundreds Rs:_in hUndreds

As.at

31::,t Mi!ln;:h 2022

Rs. In bundreds

As at

31st March 2021

Rs. in hundreds

Statutory Dues

Others

72.

40,671.48
150.32

40,821.80

23,971.52

726.24

24,697.76

22 TRADE PA

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Dues to Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises

For Goods & Services 48,622.O2 49,s23.15

22"L

- - 48,6n.U 49;13.15

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per notification number GSR 679

(E) dated 4th September, 2015. The Company has compiled this information based on intimation received from the suppliers of their status as Micro or Small

Enterprises and/or its registration with appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act")"

As at
31st March 2022

As at

31st March 2021Particulars

NIL NIL

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms

of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during each accounting

vear.

NIL NIL

The amount of interest due and payable for the
period of delay in making payment but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006

NIL

The amount of interest accrued and remaining

unpaid at the end of each accounting year Ntt

The amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under

section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

NIL NIL

ilt

Sl. No.

22.2 The ana of the Trade ble

23

Current Maturity of Long term borrowings
lnterest Accrued on Borrowings

Other Payables

23.L There are no amounts due for payment to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund at the year end

OTH

I

1

568.s3
L1,702.29
6,047.48

L,731.43

9,824.09
4,089.70

18,318.30 15,645.22

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

TotalLess than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(i) MSME

(ii) Others 20,873.66 5,424.46 22,t78.O1 205.89 48,622.O2

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME
(iv) Disputed dues -Others

24

Salaries & Wages Payable

Gratuity Payable

25 OTHER

Statutory Dues

Others

19,003.96 L3,O42.t3

7,894.97

19,003.96 14,937.10

40,67L.48

150.32

23,977.52

726.24

40,821.80 24,697.76

iv
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. L01132WB1990?L.q)4?991·

·

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for;the year endedi'3.;:;1;:;.st;.;M=a;.;rc;;.;h,._,,20,.;2;;;;2'-:----=-='""""'""..,...,,"""
OPERATIONS

··

or the year;eil'ded For \fi?eai::?oiI??.:.
st M_archzoi?<

.,
l\5?lstivlarcb??Q?f:,+?Rs.•

in hundreds:·'.';\:¥%':\. in hunore'dsi'?

Sale of Products

Tea

Sale of Cuttings

Other Operating Revenue

Commission Income

4,99,328.94

56,568.00

40,805.61

S,96,702.55

6,29,073.93

48,000.00

69,114.05

7,46,187.98

27 OTHERJNCOilil

Interest Income

On Loans

On Bank Deposit
Interest on IT Refund

Dividend Received

Other Income

Change in fair valuation of Investments

Profit on sale of fixed Assets

28 (INCR?El/?E?RE?E!N
FINISHED GO .

>1'.

2,529.44
503.82 722.65

30.48 99.00

4.75 1.75

5,742.91 2,390.45

197.18

432.95

6,714.91 5,940.47

For the yearende?.:iitl'/i'':forthe ie,?f ?-
1st ?arch2$:2 ,:,??;,i,.3lst?arc?:i

_
.

?·
.•:·01n hundreds ,::::"!':'':' ·in hundred : ::1

Finished Goods

Opening Inventories

Closing Inventories

Total changes in inventories of finished goods

40,042.00
76,600.55

(36,558.55)

31,629.55
40,042.00

(8,412.45)

2,86,518.54

40,755.67

12,399.83

6,222.90

29

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Gratuity

. T!? FO:rthe year ended Fortli(yea.reqgf!l?
31st:March2022 Rs. 3ls?_.t)'larch20_21 :',I

.• ,.,, • .,,.;..;._.;.'i?!)t:.:·1,,Itc::.?:.:nd::.r::e::d::.s..;.c:i/j:.:n:.:h.::un:.:d::r.:e.::ds:__'..;;''
2,90,560.48

30,383.11

28,616.14

14,244.10

3,63,803.83 3,45,896.94

or The year ended, :•-:ror ttie.V:eare,iid?-?
i?}?arch2022

.

Rs. 31_st1:4,frch2021 ' R?
.. ; ;,,.J?. m hundreds.

.

in hundreds ·;;

Interest Expenses

To Banks on Term Loans

To Banks On Working Capital Loans

To Interest on Unsecured Loan

Other Borrowing Costs

Other financial Charges

378.45

22,261.98

40,427.34

2,995.93

66,063.70

576.29

18,839.08

47,268.74

1,764.99

68,449.10

26

Sale of Products

Tea

Sale of Cuttings

0ther OperctingBevenue
Commission lncome

lnterest lncome

On Loans

On Bank Deposit
lnterest on lT Refund

Dividend Received

Other lncome

Change in fair valuation of lnvestments
Profit on sale of fixed Assets

4,99,328.94
56,568.00

40,805.61

6,29,073.93
48,000.00

69,114.05

5,96,702.55

503.82
30.48
4.75

5,74?,.91

432.95

7 187.98

2,529.44
722.65

99.00
t.75

2,390.45

L97.18

6,7L4.9\ 5,940.47

Finished Goods

Opening lnventories
Closing lnventories

Total changes in inventories of finished goods

40,042.00
75,600.55

3L,629.55
40,042.OO

(36,558.55) (8,412.45)

29

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Gratuity

lnterest Expenses

To Banks on Term Loans

To Banks On Working Capital Loans

To lnterest on Unsecured Loan

Other Borrowing Costs

Other Financial Charges

2,90,560.48

30,383.11
28,6L6.14

L4,244.L0

2,86,5\8.54
40,755.67
12,399.83

6,222.90

3,63,803.83 3,45,896.94

378.45
22,26L.98
40,427.34

2,995.93

576.29

18,839.08
47,268.74

1,764.99

- _,.:::-1,

-.ri1l',''"\.
"j.- /_ -.- I .d t.

\,/,..\

:iW*iiiii zv' .1 \ ',',:.,',
''i: \* -' l":1/ .

66,063.70 68,449.10

27



31 DEPJlEciATION

Depreciation on Tangible Assets

Amortization on Bearer Plants

39,967.07
12,239.25

52,206.32

38,696.45

10,898.53

49,594.98

32.1

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials

Consumed

Power& Fuel

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Repairs to Other Assets

Manufacturing Expenses

Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges & Selling

Expenses

Commission & Brokerages
Auditors' Remuneration

Rent, Rates & Taxes

Insurance

Loss on Sale of Asset

Directors' Fees & Commission

Legal and Professional Charges

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses

Other Expenses

11,217.70 24,468.03

SS,087.17 75,830.01

856.72 1,459.10

4,813.27 12,633.71

37.00 1,163.72

28,702.08 18,403.40

6,481.20 6,492.58

4,638.69 6,678.07

1,165.00 1,295.00

19,058.28 7,939.67

522.49 505.73

S3.68

1,090.00 965.00

4,174.48 4,750.43

670.40 880.35

6,647.39 3,843.20

1,78,161.86 1,67,361.69

orthe ye,[,01), ?,·•r,ai:"orJ?tY:?,?J,¢nde,cl!ill

i"'.!??,iozz
.

'Rs,?if,March2021tt;,Rs:"

in hundreds ·t,I· in hundreds

Statutory Auditors

Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Other Fees

33 TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

750.00

150.00

265.00

1,165.00

995.00

6,368.00

7,363.00

750.00

150.00

395.00

1,295.00

13,750.00

7,715.42

21,465.42

34

34.l

·

For the year ended
.

For the.ve?r eQSe!!
?tMarch?i2?,ii.Rs.3lstMafch.202l...

·

Iv,.
'

in hundreds :,\r,,;", i?.h?ndredstt;i?,

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans
Less: Tax expense on the above

74
Total

2,584.85

(665.60}
1,919.25

1,919.25

(278.84)
71.80

(207.04)

(207.04)

Depreciation on Tangible Assets

Amortization on Bearer Plants

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials

Consumed

Power & Fuel

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Repairs to Other Assets

Manufacturing Expenses

Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges & Selling

Expenses

Commission & Brokerages

Auditors' Remuneration

Rent, Rates & Taxes

lnsurance

Loss on Sale ofAsset
Directors' Fees & Commission

Legal and Professional Charges

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses

Other Expenses

52,206.32 49,594.98

39,967,07
12,239.25

38,696.45
10,898.53

32

L7,2L7.70
88,087.t7

856.72
4,8L3.27

37.00
28,702.08

6,48L.20
4,638.69
1,165.00

19,058.28
522.49

1,090.00
4,774.48

670.40
6,647.39

24,468.03
75,830.01

1,,459.10

L2,633.71
7,!63.72

18,403.40

6,492.58
6,678.O7

L,295.00
7,939.67

505.73
53.68

965.00
4,750.43

880.35
3,843.20

7,78,t6t.86 L,67,367.69

33

Statutorv Audi!ors
Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Other Fees

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

750.00
150.00
265.00

750.00
150.00

39s.00

1,165.00 1,29s.00

995.00
6,368.00

L3,750.00
7,715.42

7,363.00 2L,465.42

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

Less: Tax expense on the above

2,584.85
(66s.60)

(278.84)

71.80

7,9L9.25 (207.04)

74
Total 1,,919.25 (207.041



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : l01132WB1990PLC048991
NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31" MARCH. 2022

35. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

a) Income tax liability not provided for:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount (Rupees Period to which Forum where
statute in Hundreds) the amount dispute Is pending

relates(Financial
Year)

Income Tax Income Tax 24,650.00 1995-1996 DCIT, Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 8,456.70 2010-2011 CIT{A),Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 62,557.70 2012-2013 CIT{A},Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 5,809.70 2013-2014 CIT{A},Kolkata

Income Tax Income Tax 11,714.64 2016-2017 CIT{A),Kolkata

Above mentioned liabilities are Disputed Income Tax liabilities which are pending with Income tax
department hence not provided for.

b) Estimated amount of expenditure remaining to be executed on capital account (net of amount already
expended) Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. NIL).

36. Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt:
The W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess of Rs.2,780.00 (Rupees in hundreds) was not acknowledged by the company as debt
and had been written back to the accounts in the year 2013-14. The management is confident that no liability
would arise on W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess.

37. Balances of Sundry Creditors, Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation.

38. In terms of the IND AS 108, issued by the ICAI,neither a business segment nor a geographical segment has been
identified as reportable segment during the year.

39. Total value of stores & spare parts and packing material consumed: Indigenous -100% - Rs. 11,217.70 (Previous
year- Indigenous -100%- Rs.24,468.03). Rupees in hundreds has been considered for this reporting.

40. Income and Expenditure in Foreign Currency- Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil).

41. There are no proceeding initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Hence no disclosure
required.

42. The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. Hence no
disclosure required.

7,·?,,,

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN : 101132WB1990p1C048991

NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR END ON 31ST MA ,2022

35. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
a) lncome tax liability not provided for:

Name of the
statute

Nature of dues Amount (Rupees

in Hundreds)
Period to which

the amount
relates(Financial

Year)

Forum where
dispute is pending

lncome Tax lncome Tax 24,650.00 199s-1996 DCIT, Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 8,456.70 201,O-201,7 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 62,557.70 2072-2073 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 5,809.70 20L3-201,4 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 7L,774.64 20]-6-2017 CIT(A), Kolkata

Above mentioned liabilities are Disputed lncome Tax liabilities which are pending with lncome tax
department hence not provided for.

b) Estimated amount of expenditure remaining to be executed on capital account (net of amount already
expended) Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. NIL).

36. Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt:
The W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess of Rs.2,780.00 (Rupees in hundreds) was not acknowledged by the company as debt
and had been written back to the accounts in the year 2013-14. The managementis confident that no liability
would arise on W.B.R.E. & p.E. Cess.

37. Balances of Sundry Creditors, Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation.

38' ln terms of the IND As 108, issued by the lCAl, neither a business segment nor a geographical segment has been
identified as reportable segment during the year.

39' Totalvalueof stores&sparepartsandpackingmaterialconsumed:lndigenous -too%-Rs..J.r,217.70(previous
year - lndigenous - 700% - Rs.24,468.03). Rupees in hundreds has been considered for this reporting.

40. lncome and Expenditure in Foreign currency - Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. Nil).

41' There are no proceeding initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (a5 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Hence no disclosure
required.

42' The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial lnstitution or other lender. Hence no
disclosure required.

th^ /'^.'



43. During the year under review the Company has not done any transactions with companies struck off under
section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act 1956. Hence no disclosure required.

44. The company has sufficient liquidity for continuing its business operations. The company is also confident about
its ability to service its debt and other financial liabilities.

45. Ratio Analysis:

Shareholder's Equity 0.53

Total Current Liabilities 0.43

0.17 -0.18

0.41 0.02

0.45 0.08

Preyious

reporting
.

. % of
.

periOd
?

Change

-0.01
Debt Service

(lnt+Principal)

?-A\ >t;;.:"'
? '?l '-?:C::urre-nt

,

·?

"
. ,

< Rep!)rting
Denominator

.
·. Period

·

Debt Capital

EBITDA-CAPEX

Total Current AssetCurrent ratio

Debt Equity Ratio

Debt Service coverage
ratio

I

Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the year
Average Shareholder's

Equity
-0.02 0.08 -0.10

Inventory Turnover Ratio Net Tu mover Average Inventory 8.04 14.41 -6.37

Trade Receivables

turnover ratio
Net Turnover Average Trade

Receivables
19.09 24.95 -5.86

Trade payables turnover

ratio

Total Purchases (Fuel
Cost + Other Expenses +

Closing Inventory -

Opening Inventory)

Average Trade

Payables
4.70 3.69 1.01

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio

Return on Capital
employed

Sales

Net Profit

Earnings before interest

and tax

Working capital (CA­
CL)

Sales

Capital Employed

-2.61

-0.04

0.02

-3.79

0.16

0.10

1.19

-0.20

-0.08

Return on investment Net Profit Investment -0.01 0.08 -0.09

46. The Company is not covered under section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 and hence Corporate Social
Responsibility Activities are not required to be done by the company

Particulars

Amount
Gross Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year

N.A
Related Party transactions as per Ind AS 24 in relation to CSR Expenditure

N.A
Provision made in relation to CSR expenditure

N.A

47. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto or Virtual Currency during the financial year hence nodisclosure required for the same.

43' During the year under review the company has not done any transactions with companies struck off undensection 248 of the companies Act 2013 or section 560 of companies Act 1956. Hence no disclosure required.

44' The company has sufficient liquidity for continuing its business operations. The company is also confident aboutits ability to service its debt and other financial liabilities.

45. Ratio Analysis:

Current ratio Total Current Asset Total Current Liabilities 0.43

,,e..vs

0.47

i:: vllqllEg::

0.02
Debt Equity Ratio Debt Capital Shareholder's Equity 0.s3 0.45 0.08

Debt Service coverage
ratio EBITDA-CAPEX Debt Service

(lnt+Principal) -0.01 0.77 -0.18

Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the year Average Shareholder's
Equity

-0.02 0.08 -0.10

I nventory Turnover Ratio Net Turnover Average lnventory 8.04 74.41 -6.37

Trade Receivables
turnover ratio Net Turnover Average Trade

Receivables 19.09 24.95 -5.86

Trade payables turnover
ratio

Total Purchases (Fuel
Cost + Other Expenses +

Closing lnventory -
Opening lnventory)

Average Trade
Payables 4.70 3.69 1.01

Net capital turnover ratio Sales
Working capital (CA-

cL)
-2.67 -3.79 7.19

Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales -0.04 0.16 -0.20

em oyed

Return on Capital Earnings before interest
and tax CapitalEmployed o.o2 0.10 -0.08

Return on investment Net Profit lnvestment -0,01 0.08 -0.09

46

47

The company is not covered under section 135 of The companies Act 2013 and hence corporate socialResponsibility Activities are not required to be done by the company

The company has not traded or invested in crypto or Virtual currency during the financial year hence nodisclosure required for the same.

rl. i

Pa rticula rs
Amount

Related Party transactions as per lnd AS 24 in relation to csR Expenditure
Provision made in relation to CSR expenditure

Gross Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year
N.A

N.A

N.A

*



48. Related Party Transactions -Narnes of related parties and description of relationship:-

(Rupees in hundreds)
Particulars of transactions and closing balances during the year-

Relationship Name
Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga - Managing Director

Ms. Mira Halder-CompanySecretary
Mr. Rajan Kumar Jhalaria - Director
Mrs Swati Agarwal - Director

Mr Balkishan Agarwal - Director

Mrs Tanushree Chatterjee - Director

Mr Dipak Tiwari - Director
Ms. Neha Gupta- CFO

(Resigned on 13'" April 2022)
Ms. Sanjana Tiwari- CFO

(Appointed on 26" May 2022)

Nature of transactions Enterprises over which Key Key Managerial Balance as on 31"
Managerial Personnel have Personnel March, 2022

significant influence

Remuneration
.. 16,331.17 1,287.04

(··) (17,422.03) (-)
Sitting Fees

.. 1,090.00 --

(-·) (965.00) (··)

The figures in bracket represent corresponding amount of the previous year.

49. The lock down and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID 19 pandemic have been complied
with by the Company. Production and sale of tea was affected due to lock down in the early part of 2020-21 and
for some time during May 2021-June 2021.

50. Previous year figures have been reclassified I regrouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND AS
and the requirements laid down in the Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date.

Chartered Accountants -<if)/.\i?;·;;-,Membership No.A45343
FRNo.317136E .;\;c?·--c.;{2'-:'.Company Secretary
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VIKASH MOHATA --

;."> SANJANA TIWARI

For L.K.BOHANIA & CO.

Partner

Membership No.304011

MIRAHALOER

Chief Financial Officer

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

DIN: 00123386

Chairman & Mg.Director

RANJAN KUMAR JHALARIA

DIN: 05353976

Independent Director

Place: Kolkata

Date : 261; May, 2022
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48. Related Party Transactions -Names of related parties and description of relationship:-

Particulars of transactions and closi balances duri the
Nature of transactions Enterprises over which Key

Managerial Personnel have
significant influence

Key Managerial
Personnel

Balance as on 3L't
March,2022

Remuneration 1,6,331.77 7,297.04
(L7,422.03) (--)

Sittin Fees 1,090.00

) (e6s.00) (--)

r: (Rupees in hu

The figures in bracket represent corresponding amount of the previous year.

49' The lock down and restrictions imposed on various activities due to covlD 19 pandemic have been compliedwith by the company. Production and sale of tea was affected due to lock down in the early part of 2o2o-2L andfor some time during May 2O2L -June 202I.

50' Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND AS
and the requirements laid down in the Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date.

|{^rA- \tc[lo^-*-
MIRA HALDER

Membership No.A45343
Company Secretdry

5-^6-^.^- Ti*--*i
SANJANA TIWAR!
Chief Fi na nci o I Office r

L. r: -\
For L.K.BOHANIA & CO.
Chortered Accountonts
FRNo.317136E

Qr+t^e-rr i

VIKASH MOHATA
Partner
Membership No,304011

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
DIN:00123386
Chairman & Mg.Director

/
RANJAN KUMAR JHALARIA
DIN:05353976
lndependent Director

Place: Kolkata
Date:26th May,2022

Relationshi Name
Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga - Managing Director

Ms. Mira Halder-Company Secretary
Mr. Rajan Kumar Jhalaria - Director
Mrs Swati Agarwal- Director
Mr Balkishan Agarwal - Director
Mrs Tanushree Chatterjee - Director
Mr Dipak Tiwari- Director
Ms. Neha Gupta- CFO
(Resigned on 13th April2022)
Ms. Sanjana Tiwari- CFO

inted on 26th May 2022
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